Van shung Chong Holdings Limited
=3 JIE = & E) fR n a]
Stock Code RFEAL5E : 1001

_Annual Report




BIEEF%ARRENAFENERN - AETRMHR
BENIFRE ARREERNFFANHERREMRE
BEWNEMRRYBFHERNRT -

—_—

ERNBREXKHEEXER - BBJARMNZRER
B HEETENEERE2EE  RMEEZHE
o ZEMR - ERERM AT ISGEEASM




BEEREERAT « —F——FFH

=

B &%
NEIER
15 332 51 IR
hEVHERHE
THEHREE
EEENwmEASHT
i 171 5 58
BEEMDHE
8 B HaI PR 7 84
FEHERE
HA &
ANER
B RN EERERE
PEERWME 19
EEEWmE 24
EEERE 33

o o A W N =




D

4

Il
i

£EE
HITES

RAEER L (2/E)
L
MBS E

FHITES

Frank MUNOZ%: 4
BAHHITES
Harold Richard KAHLER%E 4=

BEIESEE
THELRE

NAEIME
FF/EL L » FCS FAS

M

RN SE=R IS T
BB KB AT

M

MRREMEEET (BB AR)
Convyers Dill & Pearman (B E %)

FEERIRIT
FEET (B8) BRAF
EEERRIT - BEHIT
BIRBTERAF

R RTERARAA
ERHFIT (B%) BRAA

RETERTT (M) BRAA

EEEmERITARAR

BRHETBFE
BFE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

EBBFE
BAEPREBHFELBRAA
BEET
SRREFR183F
BRFAO71712-1716F

EMRER
Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

BMEER T EEEME

BEET
ERRNEFR183HR
AT 034903-7F

il © http://www.vschk.com
BFEM  : vschk@vschk.com

EEBBMEXZMARAA LT

FEZEASH 11001



W PE

Anshan Iron & Steel
Baosteel Corp.

Fushan New Steel
Guangzhou Doowon
Guangzhou Iron & Steel
Jiangsu Shagang
Jiangyin Changfa

Jinan Steel

Jining Yauanda

Laiwu Steel

Lianzhong Stainless
Maanshan Iron & Steel
Shenzhen Sinomaster Steel
Shougang

Tianjin lron & Steel
Tianjin Tiantie

Wuhan Iron & Steel

=V

China Steel Corporation
Dragon Steel

Feng Hsin Iron & Steel
Hai Kwang

Tung Ho

Wei Chih

W B

Chiyoda Steel
IFE

Kobe

Kyoei

NSC

Tokyo Steel
Yamato

W 3E

Siam Yamato
SCT
Tata

W EE

Dongbu
Dongkuk
Hyundai

v tHEH

ICDAS
IDC
Diler
Kaptan

W BEEHT

Zapsib
YR =Yii]
Gerdau SA

W

Shengli (Vietnam) Special Steel
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N 4,867,657 5,677,792 4,659,507 3,251,836 4,207,768
mERF S (E8) 136,781 73,601 (182,535) 136,326 69,564
FHBER (43,328) (51,790) (47,697) (18,668) (23,268)
BrEL RS A S (E518) 93,453 47,047 (256,740) 104,762 52,904
FT8® ()5t A (12,534) (1,876) 6,546 (22,279) (14,010)
FEHM (FE) 80,919 45,171 (250,194) 82,483 38,894
FEAE -
RATRREREB A 70,627 31,317 (278,252) 75,221 31,032
e Hl MR 10,292 13,854 28,058 7,262 7,862
80,919 45,171 (250,194) 82,483 38,894
[N 17,693 9,101 = 22,361 7,869
Bz -
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ERBEE 333,467 427,866 357,977 313,942 238,979
mBEE 1,915,225 2,425,056 901,342 1,130,253 1,598,956
mEraE (1,148,069) (1,652,470) (682,959) (789,146)  (1,158,642)
JEmEatE (93,220) (122,548) (14,824) (4,063) (1,501)
BEFEE 1,007,403 1,077,904 561,536 650,986 677,792
S

A&7 36,861 38,043 38,143 41,413 41,413
it 745,734 797,688 500,184 579,744 603,243
IR A AR AR K 782,595 835,731 538,327 621,157 644,656
FEFEHI MR A 224,808 242,173 23,209 29,829 33,136
M ABEE 1,007,403 1,077,904 561,536 650,986 677,792




=

EEBERDR » =&

BE-_T——F=-A=+t—HBHLMEF
B Hrm#ER: E-HEXERE T
Ef ENFIEBTRRETH - RFAB—N
N—FHREELERERRES RS
%5% HEZE UTRKEFBEE - KES
NAEARBERTEAEERE
&I%MﬂZEE?ﬁ%P&?  BESE 5
PASEE - A A R S INHERE - --

~
C./

% RMESILREREL R EEERK
HEE - BT BB XERTFEELAETN
iﬂzﬁ BLSABENERNEEBNAGE  ER

NEBRREENRR - AAMARE  BEFEZ
BRYWAIER2EARREKY) - ELFRAZF
B TEIRREBROXBEE  BREGEMHNER
AL - AR HHER - FERMEE B IRS A
REEOML - EEMRNEAERME  ERESR
FZBBA51RE o

fe& b B & T - BT R R OEB 2
B 1820% I E T XA E % HRyerson * TERK T ¥
HEETEERARMNEME  WHRAR=FHESR

BEEFEE — 8 - MERKRSIEE NI R EH
FRMKE  mitEfI2amE  KAEE2ORAR

HAOREE
EO

ER - ERNETNEMESRTE

%B@%i’%@é’é%)ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ L PASYN L R/NCIN
ERER HAISE - RBIEE - ZFHHRER
E$Kﬁ#%;fﬁﬁﬁy%¥iﬁm%@1§ﬁ - BN

NEERAE  HENERRABMAERERS
REREHERE R REKIAR -

AAHRFEBRZAKRAKREEL  LEEER
BREBUER [+ =08 PRI TERBEABLESE
REZTE - RACHBRRRBEERANZE
B YO BRI ERENESEBZNFER -

ZEFIRRABARSURCHERMRIEE
B RAEIRAE - }\Z“Tﬁ—tﬂ%%j]ZﬁZl& EMAR
A ERBE AT 2RE - RADEREHZE
EfEm kBRI ERE ZOEE  EHEEERMOAE
BIRRE - FRSINR R RIREAKI) 2 B IREARERE -

BIEEREZHEmME T RERRERAFER
- REBIRHEAEZ TERBERAZHREBERN
EPRhHERRHEENER YA MENRE 2
A o B — S RE QRN B ERERE - 1R



BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

FEHES

B K5

NP 55 NP 225058 N
- R .“;
O LEEEEAELE ¥ R o
.“’ RS 8H .“’ & .“’
Np A .“; ra9E .“;

o Ls &

%

N’

BEENMEERE I E2ES  EBERNMSHES
BRBEG L 2 AGE - BRI IRAGE MRTTIRREE
Pk ERBEBRZEWE  KREBT  5IHE
E EHEAEREREUN —EE2H AL EE-
ZERZOEAEDRMAZENES  BABEAR L
TOWEEEBTZEEERR -

RERFINTERAREER - BREBETERA
AT E] - AERRIBTA BME NN RIREL
AREHIR 2 A - WAGRZ B — Bl T RFRRAE
RINBITZ —RZLERRRES - EEER2M
THRES  WHFFHTETEZBRHMET 2
ERRBRORESR -

BEAN - REMR EBTHROZERYERR [H%
FI) TRERIER - EFEAZ AW TR LBM A
P EBHEMZERE - AR RBRITNZ
MEZIRE -

EIEE
SEARQT

wEEEAY NP EEER P BERARES
BB ﬁ 2EREREE ﬁ BE

EY .? s .T, I

M Np BB .T; K

g N

P

£

B

RERM - AR IEmE EREE &+ BB AER AR
BZEREHK LEGEREREZEEER  BHR
HEBERERW T OERNRENFEZHEST - &K
PIABEBEEENGRNE - NEEREH -

UEHONBRIERES - MEERABKAZET
AABERRRAFEEX/EANENER  RIRE
EMgeEE - BEER FERR 28ET &
EEHR  BEPAHRES NI UEEMEED
BRER - AANRBUBERIWERNEE—FH
BEXRLETRE N - HERFEFFNRAE
HISEAKY

FERITIRARH,
phiEE

—E—%XA++tA

e

VSCTIRE

W ///'//////7'///4)///y
& 1 R
(\/






BEZ——F=-A=1tHUUBEFE (2 URFE]) REIEES
BBHRAMBES - WAKBER  BrEETEETHERRED R
RN EHAONKEZ N LERER - ZFLERAARR B BB A KB
R EEE  TREE_ZE—_F=A=1t—HULUBRFE([ZF—Z§
BEE]) cBEER -

S F R #£4,200,000,00078 70 B EFEHER29% o WAKKEEZEER A H
PIEB M R

BRESENERENXRBE T TFURFE ([ZT-FHRFE])
M9.2% NREESFM45% > EN X TR TE2HARKMNTBMY XBH

.'Jﬁ.‘-\."u."'.\"km

m“HHHﬂ»

B B ER ETRBE REREM EBHEET - RiESEABGS
M 431,000,00058 7T °

BEMBAAXBEMNLEELEENEMAMENIERETEGRA A
MEBTRE  REER_T——MHRFEELRYNIREIR ° 415,000,000
75 7T 5%.126,000,0007%8 7T BII2R B A& EE RIGEEE) - FFERB S ERIZE
486,000,0008 7L ' BM_ZE—ZFRE ANBESEH EF202% - FEEZELEW
RHHE - EWERFCEE A S (FH AR R R EERR AU A TE365H ) B %37
A8 EAZEA398 - FEBAE B S (LT ERAHEEKATE365H) ([17
EHEERH]) Y31 BREEL29H o

BEEEBzEABEBL X (BEFE  EEQERBRBRTEAMRS
FIReEE  BRURERBEABGERARBEEINEEFER) BEF 224%8 0
EAREFREFZ10% ©

RIZB——MBFE  AABEFREINEIEERENNEEE - URED
EROREES  SRBRBERE -




BESEEERAT » —B 555

10

50 11 70 88

MM OHEBESERTBLENHNE SRR T
REMFHER  UWRERBERMBEEOMT D H
%% - BIeESEHB66.7%ERNEE AR — 8
BIESRIEERNEBAMM ER D HER -

EBEME - MR Eh R EEES AR K EE
RAESEIEEREERENEE - EMABLEER
ELEEBEERAGEETRRAFERIE R

RIFZFE - WREEERE I A BB AR OED
M BT - IR 2 AL B R LR R
B - LBIREREREME - HAIAT LR H
BERENZE RAREEEENHRER - ARE

SUARAIMEIRAERSNEERET R - Hi
BHeEENEENRER  YTETAKREAR
BRUITE -

HEMM D E ((FEME])

FBMM B HEHB L EFRMI% - EREBR
RPENHERER REBREDTHS2RDERY
S MR 0T SR B B A KR
o MEEBEAERE  BHRMSOARLAT



BEBNIRECEER  MUBERITXMAFH—
REFEPLERPRETEBETRE - FBRAMBER
FOSHETREE @ MBRANSEEERNHES
RZT——F A=+ HNFHELAHEEANA
203,0008M8 - RE—ZE— —BIIREE - FBMHM L
AMEHERBRIPEK -

BEAARMNRERSD TAERER  BREEES
BOAAXERF—H - AEER  PHEPREK
F—H - BRESREN  REEREEIR
RiEE - BEMHCRKER - RS FHH 0
BREELEERTEMmME—F LT -

AU EREMIS LR - ABEIEE SERMH
Rt - B EHEEEMSELERE - ARE
BV HAET S EREELZTRE  ARNEERS
HEERNEEA - BIEESBNTHKINESRSEE
B ERE S REK A ORIS108E e R (5
D) REXRRUFERE XTI HBRETENIER
FIE o AN BIBESB N FREESBNEER
AAFERREENEFLZFE -

My mniNAEE  BRIVRE  RERMEES
T EENEENRREERE 5T EE
EMEEMERTEES  KMESERE -

B At iAo 85 ([ Bl ER )

BEPRGELSREKTRIER  FEMSHE
ROMELBRVENBYDEE - RMSKDES

BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

[E#H] EALE  YRAMTHEENERTS &
TMERABRMWENE » FARREZLEETHHE -

hREAERIERARILIR R =PIREHHBEER
R B ENAIEETT - AR Ll sRAE =5 -

REKF - BABEERHATRERRAFRE
B WRETSEAR  REASLELER
HTRRE HE R - BFRE RN AL -
WEE R B EPIPRE - SRR REE
KRG -

TEBLEERFER

AEEFEBIEEREER S REBBLEEREKHN
REEMAEETE  RACELTHAERER
BLSE S UNIRE: SN e SN s -2 v
RIZEEIES R BRI o FPILEBIR AR
TEELEREGHEERK  BREEE— 5
BEEERK  MEMATRTEZCERSETS
BHLEERER - EHBRBILTZME KT EE
FEcEMEECENEE ZBREERALLT
R EENLEMBRABREBRRD -

HPITPMRARE  BIEEEEEMAETHERLE
CEBNECEBMIEIELER KB —FX
MEBENRBEELRLANE  cBELERERK
EERFE  JERRERIEZMERETEAR
MEARZENNHBNREEE -RE-T——W
BEE  #MEReBEBLBEREBISAYESR
R RIVRRELER

11



12

b
o

BEEmD
REERHBEGRTHEGHHEBEEADS
(B L3 RYI - RE - BAFUER) HRRA -

FER IR (PR - E8- %I K
EE

RZE——BEREE - B EF IR F 8588
30%I8 & - %Y3E4,550,00075 7T © A A 250,000,000/
T E - EFRE113% 0 BEERG%AMBELE ©
REEBNEENHEEBRNR BZRTEHEANE
SRS HEBBKNRAEERE S  BENE

E3

EE_T——MBEFE  PEMNEKNESESEE

N T 2 IE R RS I RIS IE o FYIEEEE R =
T——HHRFEF=ZFME  MToTOREBHEESE
B E HESIE o FUIEEENRE  €@A%M
ERYIEE LRI AFNE S -

BAE e R IE S —REH B R EUZE R EE
WAL ENTOTON 1A - REBETERABHEM
HEBEBRYRI - AIRKIETF B =R EF
K o BTOSTEMH)SRAS ERE BRI R IR E B AT ANGR -
HERMEMZPEMNTOSTEMD HRESHFARIIE
£ o



BPBRBNERERTEHRELEES  MER
BN FEREEAHEEE0REKFLERER
T ENAEEKEATFELENEAELE &
P93y o B SR 2 dn TS 0 R ROR AL

BREEEMB
EEREERBAEEBETEERIE [P -
HEERA—BAER [REMB KN LS BF
By — 6 R RATT R -

RN EBAEE10EF 2B - Rk E B ERBTOTO
BEREE ERERARZ —HAREEE  UEA
BREANPEMROEFITERSHE o MEIREN
REEREYD DR B ATOTOZ A RE M - BEAF
Arkitepo) 3 + B A FSantarossa BT IE R A » EE
FRBEIEAEAE -

RZE——ERFE BEEEELBPELIER
Wik PBEEREETAFALRMEA L TEA
FE - WABRZE—EH HFE G INER23% - I
I EUS#E27%EFI R ERE - ST IEEIB AR
14,000,000 7T © BHEE N D B12% - BEEZEBE™
SERRFOBER BB ENERSEEWE
ReAm BBREERTLEBRZHEBEENTEER
B LURIE - — —BREFEER THROFE -

BIEEEBEARAT « —F_~FFH

REREBIEETEIERBENE LI NEE
FIE  RFEBEBREMMBHERE - UEE R
BREAMS  2EBMEEENABERE I
HATOTO -~ Arkitepo * Santarossa 2% A 1 A7
[4x M RREEE ] TER -

ZESFIEH R AT E B RIS ARELIE B BHER
REZFESHNBERBEEE RIRL  BERXS
BES ATFRE BSENPARREAFS - &
RRERRZH D

13



14

BRflEDiE ([ 2RBE])
PREHSH— MR TREBEE - AR BRI
MHERHE  REETEE  RERERIAL
EE - PBHETRED TRERE - THELE
% EREERRRAEN R DEREBSH
B % AT S -

RZZE——BRFE - ARFEDS SRS
AEHSE BEHERERNEERERE AR
B ELHRMACSERHENESBEREEFIAE
EmE (FINEPT) - AR EEFBERK
AR 141% » I 75 B 58S BRSO IN27% o 447 Jrig
H0#91,700,00078 7T °

ERKRN-_T-—_MBEFE  ZABRHERSFE
RMIAEER(BE - K& I RES ORI F
WHAREZRER - BRI EEREZINTERE

B MEETRBESWER REOERRERE
mEBBOMIBLAEE  AESHHEEER - HME
ARTERPAAEME  MEPRBFRIXF
[ERENE] B SEERERME-F—=
FHER - BHATSRARRABTAMNERRE XL
RMEFPRRETER  WHLELE -



B E

FEERSE

BlEEEEEERE LR LTE —FEES T BY
PN KRBHII3%ER EERMEES - BIES
EEMTBRATERZMAKNERN - BAT - ZY
¥MHAERRgY - HEBEEZREB AR - AR
MEHEEEETREBERA - HPIHYEESEREK
Mskige  UmHEMIEE REDETERRER
oo EBEEMERIGEITARRERKAH
Mz B A ERMEWRLIEEE UGB ILIEF#
EWE -

R

.

R T —— U RFERKTEN—#D - BT
BEEENBHERTN2ERE - REAULERT
M- BAEE-_Z——MBRFELFFHEHER
BERBYUEBOMER - RHE BRI ERIE
RMERZN P EE R AR (B
F-REB=ET)  BHATFCRAREZZTHRTR
FHERERS  HhnEERHERETRIE
b3 [ B = B M B AR AR o S50 - BAPITR
ERBRFRANEMEFBEDS  WEERARKE
%A B SRISERE -

15



BESEEERAT » —B 555

16

HRE

BIEEEECRENTENEERK - BIRESE
BREIEZEBNERIN - TSEE Y & L&
ERERDIFHE - UINBEBERMBALRLQE
BREEE -

e

BIEE&ERBETEEENMBLELEHE
[Ea8B 5 ([a8])) M44% s - B AT » a80 BIE L&
FMEMEE=ZRMMFERE - 5K LBBEERE
FHER R a8 -

BB a8 — T — — R FE A S - # M
EFEANEAEERLE  — B0 RER LEHTER
HEBFMEB) - TR FlasB B A FMAAL B IE AN
RERT @ BESERIE R8I e AMBE KRR A
mERAFHS ANEBE -

BE@MHRE LBEENBAEHENARNREARE
SNBSS - aBRREEBFNRER HIE MU RETNER
RBEER BEMMEENES - B a8 R
RANEREEFREAYNRER  ERTELH

BEFBEBRE o =T — — B RE L HRa8F L
T SR ER —F -

ADER

ANERRBIEERBEREENEE  EEBHNS
FTHBRBEERE - HFHNANERRREZFHE
WIRE PR EBAPIMAA M EIR@MER - JAInsg K&
RAXNEER  ASEEMEREEZREE -

B - hEX

ERAEEBK 22 NXF T RABFTLEEED -
T EERIPFIRE - EFERERIUCEKBEIRS
KEZHTAREN - T-FEEFINKBIRES
BZABEKEER—E - RAAARBZHRAR
AERESHERRANBRENR  BUHEER -8
B RBEERS - BEASMAS T EIGEE
RERE - ARFAIFMRGE BERABFEZOX
b BREBRINOKE - MERBEA - R—1
o

BR - EMVKEK

REAERMNZLEE - BEHE  IRERT - ol
BEE  EBAEREREM  ARRLEEMAR
TREYZLEENERS - ENERBRE - RIRF
BREBESMEBUNEBRERBERI AL - 155
Brm—FIH  RfixBREREREAD  ZEE
UMM RO NEFINE - KRR EM



EREREI - WEBARAABERMINE B EE
FMERRETR2ERFI - BIEE EE TR HE
IR EBIAZ EEBH G R RIZIAEE R IR
THHE - EEENTREBGEERET L ERIER
BEETHRABBEEAT -

R K E R

BRNEmEEEE KA B B REAT TSR
BAREATNESH ZEIEFE - R0
REC TR EREG - BRI ERBHE - B
AEEZERAERTIER - AEEBHMARD
EXRAPIE—TERE T LA KA R ZE

BEE

HEEME

ARBRELEBAMGEEREAERREE
HTEREBR2EZBEAZLY  WINRBHE
B ARTCHE=FERE [AARMBE] MR _-F

—FEEESALLEL B REAARDMY
BRERBERANES -
(3=

RZE——F=F BIEESBER418KEER - K
DEIBNITERRE - BHED A FEBER
ELEZ REBEFE  BRER-ZZT—F+—A8
TZHERMZERERTS BERRMNEERRER
AT 52 883,815,0000% & @ A% 2 BE G -

>4 pod S Lk
Ejﬁ%ﬁlﬁ&,a%/ﬁ@ Hij
1) RBESk@E
R-ZTE——F=A=+—H BIEEEEZHE
% K%IR 4 B4 /5486,000,0008 70 (ZE—F
F 161,000,000 7T) * & £173%5FE T
#912.2% 5 N R K #70.4% 4578 T0 o FRE S
SEEIEA ZFIR &M 4/515,000,00078 7T °

17



18

RZE——F=ZA=+—H " BIEE£BE &
B @E 49 5600,000,00078 7T © 22815 A BE
B (= F —Z 4 : 414,000,000 7T) o &L
#942,000,00078 7T (= & — Z F : 57,000,000/8
70) ZHIRIR 1717 5 M 49486,000,000/8 7T (==
—ZF 161,000,000 7T) 2R E MIBITFR
% - i BB EFEEL) A72,000,0008 0 (& —
T 1 196,000,00087C) c RZE——F=H=
+—BUMBEEFERAEAERTE (B1ER
BB ARGEARBERHNEEEFE) A
BERBELRA24%HE10% AL T —FF
—A=1+—8 " RBLEH143EMBHE138
& o LE R B AR RIEERE T ERKFET
HEERBRIE  BIEEEEH N BZEH
B RERFNIBAKT - BIBESEMNEKE
BE—MAEEBESEL RS RETRIET
REMNRITREREES -

R R

BIEESEMARMERER G IHERED
EENER - BIRESEEEBEBREEHK
ShRMBEARERE - BREMNXRINERRIA
EHBEIEERE A KEKE A RREHEMT AKX
AYGHeEENE - BIEERE—BERFEE
MBERFRR - BIEESEBZXBETENE
T XTRARERS - ARNBTTEEIT ZH
EXREE  BIRSSEAEREXRRBRAEE
e

HEARENTE BIEESEREEAAR
BB ARED ARBENR - (MR B E

o M-_BE——F=A=+—H0 BlEELH
HB74.0%2 5T EEERNETFTE - £0.6%
AETTFTE R L254% A ARBEHE - £ HIR
HERKEBIEESECEEERAGBZE
AT BERTRPINESL - BUAEHIEET
BEZETBINERR -R-_T——F=ZHA=+
—H - BIEE&SBEH & £4140,000,000% 7T &
AR #518,000,0007T 2 RE B INEE B S
B BRRUELLEE 2 ERFABEEEY
e R E——F=—A=+—H BlEE&£H
EEEEHIRZHNEGTE - BIEE EEEE
EEfTEemT A FRABXERNEHRERG
BEEBZIINELBRR - MBIEEEE 2 KX
A e AR KBTI AMTETARS -

HREE

R-ZE——F=A=1+—H BREEEEIE
EXFRAGE -

BERH

RZE—F=A=+—H BlEES£EHFH
TEEFEIRT - B45(1)4922,000,0008 T2 7 &
ERPEBIEESE B TRBRITER : (i)
ETFRERRERTERLHEFEZEE ¢ (i)
#931,000,0008 T 2 IRITHERIEAEIEESE 2
IRITIEE R 2 & & %911,000,00078 7T, 2 8817
GREEAMVEBESNZERR » Riv—1E
#920,000,0008 T2 IR AW E D HITIEBIES &
B ETRITIEE -



EEER

BIEEREERAR ([ARA) 282 ([EF
&) Bh#RRKTFZEEER - ARFMEESKX
FZABERBREANR/ARTINEMBLAR ([BIR
E5E)) 2 —ERBERRBE 2 ERE - NEE
BEAR - BINEAE - AR SKTHEESRRE
Rz EEER RBE_T——F=A=+—H
HFE BTIXAAZ mEEEERSN  ARECES
FEEABARZMERRAAER LM (T LEHA
1)) M4 B X BT RE AT ([REERT
A1) 2[RRI WEF—IEATAIGY - EFEH
st MAEARRZERE ARR L ER - i
REBEHLARBERIEE LERZRE -

EITHRZRZ 2 BESTE
ARRERZZTMF=A=+—BEK/LHRA
ME10PEl . EMBETAESETRERR I ZEE
SR ERARRIZES ([EF)) MEFRSTH
(TARZRESTAD » BTG EHRAK 1070 =
ETENEF-A-AR-ZETNAFOA-BERZE
7 REZRESTRIEELZEMAMZER - &7
MBEREHREERR  REBARBE_T—
—FZA=1T-HLFEARACEBTRE ZFEETA
FIBZFBERE - RRIZEETATTERREIES
KEZEREZEHREEEARAZES

BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

AL £ N/
JL%E/D#

EEg

EXeRRAB-R2UTES  —BIFNTESER
“RBUNTES - AR —2BUFRTESFA
BABZEXRETERLMBERERNE - B
BUFHNTEFERELTRAUEIBHEZRTRE
RHERENEBIME 2 BFERE - ARRRAM
BREUGFATEFTETARN EMMRRIEBHZ
BIIEES  WREZEIMEER/BIAL - &
EFEXRERIEMYBEMIE - X755 KiksEHM
EXR/HEBEBRR - ARFERBIRESERNCES
AREHE OARITEMIFLEE R LT -

HWTEFTREEHEREL  wMEXE2ENTHE
EHIERBMITRERE - BIUFRTESHES
B A REE S EITIRABMARK - BB
REMBEEZEERMRERAEEERIIBLZ
& ITEFTEHNES X BEAALERSREN
ZERBTRUTEZ BN EEXRBHE e
ERMIERE - WY IFNITERTHRBFE 2 L8R
mEIEE -

EEeNBAREERRENREHEIRERE 215
EREXMHREN EFAFERABRKETIERE
ik - UWEVISEZ B - EF RN T 2 &l
BRI BBKELREZTENTEEEE B
HEIRSEBEZRE - EFERMAEENAZTR
SNEERERREMEXER2BYER XA
ZNCIFE NI

Iff

19



=

20

SEBERDF o B FFH

REGEIREREZITEZER CRI=ZFES
ZBg AT ZES FMZEELREKRZER
T EEECHREEBELALE  ANERA
E MWHBRERLEHENTRERZEST 4
RIS RE 2 X R EBEEF -

EEGEHRGALANERS  EFEKE K
BEMR S RARIERAAHIER -

REBFERN BREFNEFEER  FTHEZE
EERNBERZEEER LR ABLOT

=) A4 FHNZESEE BERZESEE
HITEF -

PhEE A (FE) 4/4 11 N3 A
8 & 4/4 TE A T3 F
MEEE (RZE—ZFFLANEEE) 4/4 i@ A N3 A
BUIHNTEE -

Harold Richard Kahlerse 4 4/4 11 2/2
BERIESL A 4/4 17 2/2
BMELE 4/4 TEA 22

ETRRITHAR

EEEATRMRXA2UEARE » EERITHRAH
ZBAIENF - T ARBRE - ARFZE
ERATHRAR B IR kB e 4 — AR HAE -
EZeRAAR - ABEERERITBARE 2Bk
RBIEESEREHARZRER RE  GRERE
B WABERE - HETRERARBZEBHR
B eMEEIESREENE R RT LR 2%
R o

ZEFATEZZEETH

PEEATAIRXALIRTE - IERTESNEE
JEEIETEME  WAESEFNESR - AQFZIEH
fTEZE (B Harold Richard Kahler5e 4 91) I 5 EE
EEH - AR (BIEESHEMES) FERARD
RIZEBERMUNE = FELHBESE XL AE
BET o



HITEES
HITERBER-BRAEZ AN KBRS
EHARTES BB AL R RE A
BB EERES -

HEEFSQHIN BITZEGAHTESTER T
RN RITHRBE YTEAEEESIRES
B2z AEEE-

FERUELSHANNERY EFURATH
HENRS RRRRRRTAR -

FNEESE
FHEEeE RN ST RAFEAMAK  EXNEBE
WITESIEBEE AT EMABBILIENITES
Harold Richard KahlerfE A& REFRIESE - HINEZE
e BEAMESRSEEEAB ZHMBER KA
BRESFREHESR BRYBIEESEREXRE
EMERCZEERSEETEABYESAFOR
WEEIHKRENzE - FTNEZES T EREREE
FTE2RATEENSEEEAEZHFHNEE UK
BIEBEEFSTRHBAZARBEERTE R R
WIERBEEZHME - MESEHEEMBEA
TAI2HEBEEASHFHAMRE - FTHEES
BIRCEEARTRRMNEBESDRE - WHRAAA
2 #84E (http://www.vschk.com) °

BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

BEREES
BREBEOR—ANNELZ AER - RERK

BRERZZBUIINTES BERELERERFR
Harold Richard KahlerfE A RIGMBREAREZE < 1%
EMRAIE3I0E EREEEABIIERITES
WAERHEXETES -

ERZESCEMNEBIRERBRAERECHE"T
——FZA=Z+-BLEFEZEAMBEHREK AR
BRBRERIDNAER G EANIOEPIRE - XiF
R KE -

ERZEBE@EFRTTORMAZLENEZ &
RilmEEMNERBMER s FZFE - WEHF
HEFRPBRE - ERZ BN CRHAIEZH
iz e - EFGRESET B ENIMNS LB 2k
BRZELYVEEFAFE -  ZENTAITIRRRAE
FERBITRINEZZEEEAUMMERER X
HAiZEIA -

21



22

EFeCHIERZEEZREGZRERE - B
FBRETARBERNEREE BBRRE—FK

EZHMXER - ARABAER_ZTZENF=ZA_+
AR TERZEGZHBREE UL
ERTANWEH 2 ZHER] - ERZBECHEE
ERTARMEABERE  YIIRARF ZMWU

(http://www.vschk.com) °

ZESSRCHBATNERE  EFeNE Ak
RBEMZEGACE N EMETER -

ERZEBegRcHELBC TN TEEE ) 29K
A o

R BREEIE & ELba B 1

EEeNENZECRAEMEBYEAEZHER
MEBRERRF  BREVH - EFMEaREZENAR
[k EIERBAE MR AIEL R UBERREREIR
EXBEZNEEERS  UWRERR ZFHE KSR
EXBZEE EFQLERZBENCDEBEN
P BB E A% BB FI AT M 2 N BB B 1 3R 15 S SN BS A B A
PrIER 2 FE1 - U T BEF - B8ERUE &
TERA R BT IARE R EIR 2 NE B R E IR
A REZRBIEERETE S MY HFERBE
HWER  BTEENMER  URBTHEXHNE
JIRIELEHEBEERT RN - IS EFEREXK
ZEEC g R AR EE RIMNEZBEN AR W E
RTHERSTATZER EFTERBERZEER
RANREZEZ RGN _E——F=A=+—Hi#
H BUE(E

ESZREA

ARBARBRIIREREZES - EEGREARFZ
ARMREEEZEEMALRETES  WAME
EEMEAZHRBEZRIER/NEZEETENE -
BEENTERFREAZERERRERME -
RERARBZARMAA HEEFVERERER
ZERBERBEAGHREABRRFIAE LERR
BREE - REERRBEFARGEL =0 —EF
(HHABALIFF=2BE - BAREALETIR =7
—ZB) AHmESE MBREFR=FAKLE
B—R - BRESENAEBEREL -

AN =
WHE-T——#=A=+—BLFER  ARF
Z SV BRI B SR A R D % 5 T 3 8 IE S
SEERETIIRHS KR B -

RISESRE FET
BIEEEBE 2 EZER 1,700
T AR 54
k) 1,754




BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

mEN2WmEE 2EE

EERPAREAAARBEVIRE AR GFHER
REARE - BB E2REEME L 2 BHHFRN
RER 2 BIRBENRE -

MEABEEMHABERAZERTHAREAEHAR
AIRFTBEERE 2R NBRERRER -

BEREECHERERR

BIEESEMNIRSERE - WHERFERE - 8E
E ONMBERARBECRIFER - ERETFEHA
REREEREELEGH - BIEESKEBRIR
BETRANBAETREEAARARFEZHENRD
& BOIRRBAFAGRAMKRERE - (ZHEEIF
BERRENER ZERIAEHEREFRT
B WAEMESERESHE - BN ESH 2@
(http://www.vschk.com) B EERREEINEE « £E
BN FBEREUBERBEASRFER LA H
WwE - BIEEABRRKEECHEEER T EHRE
BRE o

23



BIEESEBRAT o

24

—F—F5H

BIEEEEERAR (A7) c&Fg ([EF
) MARZEARAREMBLR (AHIEIES

SEDEBE_ZT——F=-A=T"RHLFEZFR
NS BECEAMTERER -

EXE S
BIEEEETIEREFHMEERENH - Hl0H
MEm BE BB RERZBBEE  ZEBEE

NMEWERSE

BIEEEEZEEBLBREETHEZBARD BE

KRR BN 2 50 AT AL S -
TEEFRHEER

HE-_Z——F=-_A=+—HILFE BlIEEXEH
BEAAREFPEEIEEEBBARATREI%  MBIES
EEERAAEERIEEIES EBEREBEL45% -
AEFBIEEEEFAZHERLEIEESEBKE
KE#I14% ©

SEE BEIWRATREARE RALAE
5 S0 AR TR AU 2 IR BEARIEA
VS T 2 B S

FrENaN DB

BEEEEBE_T——F=-A=T—"BLLFEZ
FEFIENAFREAZHFEERR °

AFEFRHESRKRESRIT MR 3,%1|JJ£«<EEA¢
EARE ﬁﬁ&»ﬁ%é MEZEFSDRZEFZIREARLER
R EFRTEBENL - HE _3——¢EH
T+ HLEFEZENRENREREREAT
5 58 A% 1.978 {1l 2k 497,869,000 7T (Z B — T4 -
22,361,000587T) °

BRANK 5 I e

BRAERRRIBRANIEREZ F1ED RIS R B 2 4R
BT TRERMIFE30 /31 ©

EERRERR

BIEESRERARRZHEBERREBIRAFRZ
BEENBNIEMN 2 4R B M TERMARMFE2

RZTE——F=ZA=Z+—8 ARQRFAHIETH
R+ A 2 18 49 /553,986,000 70 (ZF — 2
153,986,000 7T) &R B & F| 4 £10,699,0007%5
gL (ZZT—Z4 1 15,028,000/ 7T) °

BEESNEOARRANRE

ARABRETANBARMENBE_FT——F=
A=Z+—BLEFERABA - SHEERAREEM

f&fn

D



BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

BEEERE

KNABZ ABHE N ERERFHETAENMESL
BEEZHT -

M= BERSEE  REWER
T b {5 FARE

WE - BMELEE REDERHEEL MR HEF
RAHERAAFEEZEBFE D RSN 2456 0%
WERMIFET5 160217 °

LI ERNGINSE: NG

FARR BB R A KB &N R 2 5EE D RIS BE I
ZERE B RARMEE1819 ©

(ER=

BHEENR-_Z——F=A=+—HZ=FBHANE
Mz fr B B TS R AR MY 529 -

RIREETE
BARD L2 RIS BABEN 2 58 M RN -
HEB

RAFE - BIEESE LB HAZERL762,0008
7T (ZZT—F4F 1 1,218,000/87T) °

EEREBZRBEL

AERERBERNFRAMLEZEEARFAES ([&E
=SV K

HITES
RIS - 2
s
HRAKSE

FHITES
Frank Mufiozst £ (R=ZZE——F NA+EHZET)

B EHITES
Harold Richard Kahlerst 4
Eliaatas

HTMRE LA

RIE AR R Z AR 4B ZE86(2) M87(MEARE » Frank
Mufiozfe 4 ~ BRI LA MG MB A ERITF
EREERRAFT A BREMT -

Harold Richard Kahlerft BN T E R — 10 A&
—EVEBRAN BHE-_E——-F+-A=+—H1H
BlE e

BLimEEI)N SEFREIREEE 2 HBEME

ABEIESEEE TG THE CREmMERS) AR
—ERTARIEZRIFEH

25



26

ESRRY - BERG R EES
ZHERRRE

R-TE——F=A=1+—H ' EFZRARFAZES
THRABRARBREEMNBEEEZE (EERES
NG GD] ([EH MBI ) HXVEE) 2R A7

Hﬂf{lﬂﬁﬂ%xv45%7&%8“452\/5%ﬂ§$®T&E
BHAR AR AR (BT (BIERIEE
&ﬁ,ﬁif{|m1§|JZEZTrfEE?BZ REIGIEHRE 2
WA k(b )z\/ﬁﬁlJ)\*E%m#&ﬁ;ﬁﬁ{wﬁu%352%
%LM?EZ%EEEH%W H(ORIE EMEITAESHE
fTM%x%E’V@ETE'J (ME2=<FR]) BMAEMEARRD

RS ZREE10E T2t ([HH]) - R BB A RAREHIIMT ¢
M REREBTREE ZER AR BIEQEBEES R
(i) ARz RBREZER
BREZE
EEES 51 EZEMGER RABE BOBIL (W)  BiER
HAEBEE ([HhRE])  REHLQF HRIEEE 2 173,424,000 41.88% ~ 173,424,000
Huge Top.Z # % Ex ()
(fiita)
ERBEA 100% (E#) 2,512,000 0.61% 1,500,000 4,012,000
175,936,000 4249% 1,500,000 177,436,000
Faus Y ERBEA 100% (E#) 142,000 0.03% 500,000 642,000
Harold Richard Kahler ERBEEA 100% (E#) 66,000 0.02% 1,000,000 1,066,000
it
MBS & ERBEA 100% (E#) - — 3815000 3,815,000
BIELE ERBEEA 100% (E#) - ~ 1,000,000 1,000,000
BHRERE ERBAA 100% (E#) - — 1,000,000 1,000,000
Hist
a. M-Z——HF=ZH=+—H " Huge Top 42.86% * I EHuge TopZ WE K& L% H

Industrial Ltd. ([Huge Topl) £/ 173,424,000
R A& - #kE 4 ThHuge TopfBES 2 —
MHuge Top&s N2 E = APGZRF/)ME (T8k
FHEZE) o Bk EEERE L11.90% % F
iBPerfect Capital International Corp. ([ Perfect
Capital]) 32 % BHuge TopD B 1TIM 4

SR — 2 ERk- ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁi%ﬁPerfect
Capital 2 EPE BITRA - FIIMEFENRMN 2
ZERER VB A RS

b BEFRARRBREIESCHLAE TE
[T 8l 5 -



== N 2

(ii) ABEE LB 2 s — Huge Top

BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

EEEB L) ESEGER ROBME BMABDL
ot F{EHIAF) - Perfect BARVERER 2 S 36 42.86%
(7889 _E3(i)Mita) Capital Z #E 25 ()
EnERA 100% (E#) 10 11.90%
46 54.76%
Rt SR EREEA 100% (E#) 13 15.48%
fREXPEEESN RZF——F=A=+—H" Br Bt ESN - N FEAREMER - AR E REERM

EF ARAZESTBRABRBEZHEARE
BBREEZ LG RDIB AR R S T HE
EEZ By HEAKRDHERZREAEA X
Ik~ REISEMESESOARBRBRQBREES MPE
EBIZEXVERE7 R F80 BB M A G AN A A S B XAy
(BREBERES B GRD 2 ERERRRIAAIE
BAZEDIRR)  Hb) A AREESLE
{GEPIZE352M6 T AT E 2 BRMA + S(ORBRLESF
AIBEMEARRBI R BRI RE 2
ERIORE -

BRARYEFTAEM L - AEEERRE ZER
EBXT N \BATZFRERERBBEARARE
MEMEABE B EREEMETER - AR
BEBEEERRSTRABXARESAZEBA TN
BRA TN Z TR E BT MEN AR AR DK
BRBESFREDITEZFERN -

27



EEEBARAT « —B-FEER

EECEHER JI‘Ei[,% E’éﬁ;;&/ﬂ g _{Ig%@J % }\(\/:g‘lgsfﬁ 2
BBERT Y BE B HSORTIREE IN - A E R A T )E}t b 3P ERBALT ZRE R
/I U

POAE (A B B A ) oL A (] B 2 B ML 2T S A B
Y TEERRG - HERORERSZ EXR

AFEhkEEEEEEEMINEESREEREBR % F

B EESHEREEEARG  EESLN - KA — BB RN RoE——FE=f=
+—H  BRARRREESFRHEGIIE336KEAET
ERERMzie:  THEENRKRG KAEBERD S
BEEREESFLEEIEHIEXVELE2K F35 2F/A
RARIEER 2 EmIAR

e g1 BROEE #BAEIHE BREZR ZotiER

Huge Top EmEAA 173,424,000 41.88% — 173,424,000

Perfect Capital P HIA T 2 RS 173,424,000 41.88% — 173,424,000
(Btita)

k2 F 2+ SRl NS - 2 173,424,000 41.88% — 173,424,000
(H5tb)

BB A 2,000,000 0.48% 1,000,000 3,000,000

175,424,000 42.36% 1,000,000 176,424,000

Penta Investment Advisers LB KR 33,100,000 7.99% — 33,100,000

Limited

John Zwaanstra SIS AT 2R 33,100,000 7.99% — 33,100,000

(Kiatc)

28



Wit -

@ MW-_ZTE——F=ZF=+—H" Huge TopF A
173,424,000 % {7 ° Perfect CapitaliZE & Huge Top
BB 1T IR 1) #742.86% + W TEHuge TopZ BRI A&
FHEBZR =M —2&EE - EibiERHuge Top
WRERBZERD

by R—ZZT——F=H=+—H " Huge TopF &
173,424,000 A% 19 © #k R F 22 + ThHuge TopMi %
FE 27— MHuge Toptk N2 EE AL AE (Thtk
BRIz H) - AtBEiBHuge ToptiR AR A%

SR -

(0 M-—ZT——%F=ZA=+—H " John Zwaanstra’t
A4 418 B 4K I Penta Investment Advisers Limited
([Pental) ¥ B & B 1= 6 4 - A UL 4518 1E 1% I
Penta R H 2 &M B AT R X HIE 6|0 H b EEEFT
RS #£33,100,000 A% f& 17 B 1Z ZHE ©

BEXHBREEN  N-B——E=A=+—8
FRUTATAEMRMBAL (EERAATRS
TRABRI) WAL ASETEMAR (F5 23
% B EE () SEXVER) 2 BRAD - IRBIIR (5 Sk (B
o 5 1R 085 2 O ) SEXVER 2 8 S35 B
AT A -

BRrEsrE

ARBBH-_ZET—F+—-A+_HERR—HEK
a8 ([FBREUERtE]) - MARF A R 8
FrolA2 8B A LR TERE - BEEL 82 e
TR -ZZZ-F+AXRBFTTRRZBANA - BB
PRt BB EMT

BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

BRETEIE/

RM2EATABIEEREELER - &%
EBIEEEEGUAERL SABMAT#HZE
8 UREMRABNEBIEEEE 2EEANE
R o

BRETSNSEAL

BEEEEEAKNE AT ZEMESR - KE
A BERSIRER BREMBITHIERTE
= AN ABRE BIBERER 2 EAEMA
i o

RA508 I AT S AT BT IR0 BB
RAFHRBABEEBRTRABD L

RAN-E—FBFNA BRI ZARAKRE
BAFEAXe ((Z2—ZTFREAFKRE]) it
EE BRI SRR - BIERERER
g - RRQBHH AR T F k41,412,825 ik 19
((EARRARZZE—ZTFNLA-R (ZT—ZF
BRERRAFASHE) 2BBITIRAL0%REAR
NERAFRAR 2 BEITRAL0%) 2B
1 o

PEIRS AR BB AR AT & R AR A & sk H
M A RMEMEMBRESMBEC RN H
RITEZBREETERA TRTZBRODES
ZHE  TEBBTRHCETRN30% © MK
HBRESERELZI0%RE - ITERE
AN B S HAE R I B 1 B 2 AR AT B AR A AT B4R
R -

29



BUSHEALRBEBERESSTR
BNRSHEE

RIFEREASUARARB R, SREME R
A Z A E A AR RT 2] - TE (01218 A HAfE
R mEMLEA LR T EREmETERER
& (BIEBITE  CESEREAITEZ BRE)
BETRETEITZROEE  TESBAE %
TR BB 21% °

RIBRE R ARRIE IR D AV A IR
ERRBREET 2 BESTERATE -

ARTEAFEBRENREHR

b S8 1 455 TE 2 B R AR N B A b mI AR SR R A
HEZGREEEFSHNEZARAZHEAE
R AT o

FENENERENENSESEUR
R BN ROVEPRNEEZERE
R EERAER

AR AW AREREE  NEARREETAHS
FEET28 B NAIA R RBZ10ETT - WHRIEHT
TERE -

8. BETEENEE
B TR DB TH T RBEAE -

a. BRORBELEETEREER (ARZEXEH)
B2 A BRI ZKTIE

b. BRORBEELETERERRAAMER
5 AEB RS R |ERMI 2 FHR
E: &

¢ kithmEE -

9. BRAEESTSIRRIERHIR

BREFESHEAR (22 —F+—A
ToH) B+FR—BEERRBR -

BREASEN T ——F+t—A+t—REM-

ARARESKBRRREERRAFARE LHER
MR FT 2 BB R 8] AR LB R 8 (A5 B
RHOBEE)  YREERRBFASEREEN
BREZcFREREERFBFASRS KT
AR G TR A AR 27 3 2 BEKA ©



REER - ZBEREA I HARITEZBRERT -

BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

BREZE
28% 5R
2 ER B¥EH id e BN ERART ERTE FRAX EX
T T T T4 T3
B%:
Ve “EERENATZR “EEHENATZRE 090BT 1,500 - - - 1,500
“B-RFAATCH
EthE “EE=FNA+NH “ZERFNATNARE  1418ET 300 - - - 300
“Z-ZFEAATNE
2R ENATZH “EELEAATZHE 0908 200 - - - 200
“T-RENATZH
ERLEE “EENERATNE “TENERATNARE 08B 1,000 - - - 1,000
“Z-N\E~A+NA
Harold Richard “EEN\EXATNE “ZENERATNRE  078ET 1,000 - - - 1,000
Kahlerfe 4 —Z-)\EXAtNH
BHERE “EZ\ERAthA “EE\ERATNEE  078%T 1,000 - - - 1,000
—E-\EXATNH
BT “T-ZFLA+NH “Z--FXA-HZ 0.828% 7T - 3815 - - 3815
“Z-FF+A+N\R
N 5,000 3815 - - 8,815
E&:
et —EE=£RA+HR —EERERALAE 0.978 7T 730 - - (30) 700
“Z-=FTANH
(Hi2)
E) —“EE=FNA+NA “ZERENATNAE 14188 1,000 - - - 1,000
“2-=#nA+N\R
#it “EEAFAATZR CEREEEAATZRE 00T 700 - - - 700
TR FNATZE
et ZEENFNATNE “E—FAATNBE  0586ET 5,600 - - (1,000 4,600
“Z-NENATLA
(H1i3)
et “EENE+AT=R “EEAETATZAE 0S04BT 10,500 - - - 105500
“T-AF+HATZE
NG 18,530 - - 030 17,500
it
it —“ZE-FRACH “ZT-ERA-HE 0,987 1,000 - - - 1,000
—Z-=%TA-H
et “EENETAT=H “EENETATZRE  05M4ETT 6,000 - - - 6,000
“E-nE+At+zH
NG 7,000 - - - 7,000
BiEsTEEs 30,530 3815 - 00 33315

31



32

Wit -

1. RERESE - BREREETERHREER
FAEETEHRRAGE AL

2. ABR7ETRERMN ZEEETZATIR
EEKEATTE

() R-ZEZAFHEALHE_TZERFAAR
BHIRE - 58 ARZ A 1TE30% F R 1
FERAE o

(i) RZEEXRFEALBE_ZTZTLFHA
NEHRE - BAAREATE70% F RN
B B A i (DA R E XU A M RT3
BR) e

(i) PZEELFEALHE-_T—=FHAR
BEAME - A AR BT RERE (AR
EX() R (i) BIARARITEE BIR) °

3. AERR0.586/8 TR BB 1D 2 BB R IR A T 5 K
B REBHITE

i) RZZE—FNLA+NBEZZE—=-FNA
TEEHE BFEARZAITE3333%IE
B My B AR E o

iy RZZT—=—FNA+N\BE=ZT—=FNA
+EHEME - BB A&ZA1T766.66%1t F
B D B9 B AR i (AR BR £ SV A M AR 1T
EAR) -

(i) RZEB—=FNAT+NBEZZT—-NFNA

TEAHE  HAEARNERTERBRE (X
RIR 3 () B (i) B PA R AR AT & BIR) ©

& - RAUGEH -

FEEALRS

HEEA T 2R G FBHNEEN 256 B mR M
5F37 °

BERS

RZZE—ZFAER - BIEETERAR ([&BIE
£771) KTent Need Holdings Limited ([Tent Need])

FIVEEWE B BIBETRE LS Ment
Need[F] = 8 B (L 10 &8 2 B R 1395k Ml i A =289
2105 % ([l - K& A15,000,0007 7T

(IZEEmE]) -

RIFB R FrREZ EMARR (T EMHRA) F£14AF -
Tent Need Z X FER ARARRRIRITESFHTEM
BB BRAARRZBEALREIBRSITIR
Z BB A Tent Need i EZMEBR AR R 2

ZWERBIREEEFAURRESKA - EER
ROHEZMEDEIREREREIRATRENEIR
ERBZEESIRE EFRR/THHEZYE
HREEESBRHBIFBEER MASHEIE
EREZXBEEEREATMNTE -

EERBRFUER 2 ER
RE-F——£ZA=+—AILEE FERAL
AR SRS B 2 AL R S A A
B 32 75 T B BB B O T S M2
5)0E 2 5 B B 22 SRR B E T (R 5

NREFRE
RAEREABREADAFEERESNAEZ A
BER - AAR—ERF EHRAMTHZ ARE
R -

2B

BEPY 2 47 & B S 3R R B KB IGB B AT R 25 FTEE
%o ARARREERFBAFAE LIRE —HER
HRNRFRERDARBENRER

REREFS

E
P18

78 —T——FAt+tA



BIEEEEERAA o =F—

ESERE

CPREE L L

Bt EE

. MRER A

. Frank Mufioz%t 4

. Harold Richard Kahlerst 4
 REBEBRIELE

BME XL

N OO U A WN -

HITES

PRI S

O+ AR ARAREFERITEAE - hEERERARIMMNKRE RIGHEEF R - hEEZ RBRBE
RHBEARBOAHHEZELETER  TE2EFTFHAERTE  TREEFFIEF  LETEFHAS
BIEFE BABFHEMNER  LBEERERE FEABRERBEAZMLAFTREERE - FR-F
TMFERE I —TTNUFERTFLRZRE] - WIAR_ZT/\FREFEFERFR T AFEL - hRETR
REBBMARGMBERRF IR EMZAEEERRARZBIIFNTES - hEETAREBBAERSHN
BRARRIER EMZ L SREEIZERBERAR ZIFNTES - REETR/ARBRBOMBRRZESE °

33



EEREE

34

ek

M+Ask AARFMTES  BEFRKITHRIF - ERFEREZATNAF  BEAE2E2EHEIREEE
ZRBERE - MERERTEEBEE - RABEEIRSERERNER LB AR EERE - FEET
RPRARBAHEEHEMNTERREZEERE - BAER - NANELENABIEEEE - RAARRAZ
BB ARZES -

MEK B4

O+—% RZE-—ZFRA-ANARRAHENBRERLERE  ERERXR_Z-EFLANBAKE
ERBTES - WLERAHNABTERAFEBS T AFVBER MAER _SENFE_TTAFUE
BPEREMAERNEE 2 HBREAR MR _ZEXRNFE_TTN\FHEXRHERERNLENPRLE L
THMIERMARARNZ EHRUBRE - MEER ST =FE T FHEFLTEMEARZTARE
IS HE - MEERRIIMKBESFRX S LT ZERBEFIZEREGRAR (1M [FEERBREARAR]) 2
BUERREGZERRAOESZI S LT 2 BnBERARRNDARRAZIBILES FXERE  HFMEK
REAZBEER MELENAHARMMETARABDIBUEZTLRELZE  ZAFARMEERE2KHS L
e MAERMIMEAFRETASREUHLERESGA BRI RNSZHELBERNLAHABHENER
KRGGEEMTEl - BEZETHRAERE -MELERSTHLFINEEHAMBHEZEE - MELTDH A
EREFEGNNINKESTEGZERGENER - MELENA/ARA —HHBARZES -

FEHITEE
Frank MufozZt 4

W+Zpx BEEFIRELTEM - BAHKBBTHERAE 2 BH RITHAZ MRyerson Asia Limited 2 42
HoFNhAERERTHEEER RGN ERAeHcAE X EEZESETERAMNATREYD 2 EME N
HEMMEXBRAR (NERETEHER - EEBNEEERAFERBA=HYEGKASHZEERE) 2
EE o MufozZe X 19894F il ARyerson Inc. R EZ (BB HEE REEZBA o RN— LA - 1% ARyerson
de Mexico SA de (VZ SBEBBK—10F - B— LN NFE-ZTZRFE - 1 ARyerson de Mexico SA de (V2 HBEL N
BIEME « NZTENE - BAEID B ARyerson Inc. 2 EEEIEHLRBEIEERBRTREREAT (£
BEZER [ HBEFEEGRAG]) ZEE - MufiozZt ER_ZZNFMNAZ T Z NG5 A ATata Ryerson
India LimitedZHITEZEGREFNEZETHERESE  RZEZLF+AZ_ZTZTNF /XA ATata Ryerson
India LimitedZE &€ = f& -+ Tata Ryerson India Limited ZRyerson Inc. K Tata Steel Ltd.Z & & b2 o Mufiozst £ JF
ALEEEEErEE - BAARBRTEBRARMEMNBARZEE -



BESEEERAT « —B——F 5K

EEREE

BYFEHITES
Harold Richard Kahler5t 4

AT AEREBREESEN  BIRSCENAPEMEBEREES - Kahler LA RERTAERBEA
B ERGERTEN  WEBABABBEIAERIBT LT - Kahler £ HTENEFKELELR - —NWNTFEE
T FEP - MY EIMNE 2 Caterpillar Inc. — B EP.T. Natra Raya (RENEEBERLE N ER) 2
EEREKIE - #1% H ECaterpillar ChinaZ 8%, - BB ENE A REE aterpillari R B & A 75388 0
R RIRE o BiECaterpillar M EBR BT 2 Hih TVERF - SKahlerse AN B AR - ME R AMITNEBEER
FAME -MNZTZTZF  KahlerE A G HABFB 2 EBBEHEERE - KahlerEENMAARE —HHBARZ
EEo

BRRESRSE

AT BR-ZTMFAANABIEEEE - RREBAESHH - RATESTMAGZEREER
MEALZABEFFEAMAEER - ELERBEEHNAGEXRTREGEXERZREZZE -
BT REBEBEAGHMAGHEEER -

BEEMHEEMARRNEEMERIMERAREIR LT 2R (FEEAEEERLAA - FEHEE
BARAR  aRO; (RE) BERAR  EXEEARQRARFTEALIOBERAR) Uk —HREBME
RHMBERDBEER LMz AR (LERBEERERRIR]) 2B ILIERTES -

RME L

Nt BELBEEXBZSRERASITHEREL  RASRKEL - REEANR-NAANFE-T
NELARTEEMEERHEFHES R ANMNFE_ZTAF A ARTEFHEXHELLEES
BelER MRBLETHMREHERETOREER  FETEEHEREHRLEER - HRELETR
NN FEZTERF-ARETLETEHERBERERAN - NANAFE_STAF+ _AEELE
FEEEEER -

0 43 >l

35



Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited * Annual Report2011

Contents
B &%

36

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZE RS

Consolidated Income Statement

mAEmER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mAEREBRER

Statement of Financial Position

BRSNS R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEREMER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RR M

37

39

40

41

43

44

46



Independent Auditor’'s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VAN SHUNG CHONG HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “VSC Group”) set out on pages 39 to
168, which comprise the consolidated and company statement
of financial position as at 31st March 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BY 2B E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the VSC
Group as at 31st March 2011, and of the VSC Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17th June 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st March 2011 B E —E——F=fA=+—HILFE

—EB——F —E-FF
2011 2010
P 5E FET AT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Revenue 5 4,207,768 3,251,836 A
Cost of sales 7 (4,018,827) (2,953,474) $HEKRK
Gross profit 188,941 298,362 EFl
Other gains — net 6 44,426 5,239 Eflg — F58
Selling and distribution expenses 7 (27,657) (20,857) SHERDHZH
General and administrative expenses 7 (136,164) (146,418) —RMITEZ H
Operating profit 69,546 136,326 EERF
Finance income 10 858 1,314  BIEIA
Finance costs 10 (24,126) (19,982) EBIISER
Share of profits/(losses) of [ERBE N RNRF
associates — net 19 6,626 (12,896) (&B18) - #5
Profit before income tax 52,904 104,762 BRFEANEF
Income tax expense 11 (14,010) (22,279) FrSfi
Profit for the year 38,894 82,483 EE&RF
Attributable to: A
Equity holders of the Company 12 31,032 75,221  ARQRRERE A
Non-controlling interest 7,862 7,262  FEFRGIMERERS
38,894 82,483
Earnings per ordinary share for
profit attributable to the equity REEXARTREFEA
holders of the Company during PEE SRt E 2
the year BREERRA
— Basic 14 HK7.49 cents& 1l HK18.71 cents/& Ll — &R
— Diluted 14 HK7.34 cents?#&{l HK18.62 centsifll — &5
Dividends 13 7,869 22,361 RE

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

M RERE M RRER L —& D
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AerHERRK

For the year ended 31st March 2011 B E —T——F=A=+—HILFE

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Profit for the year 38,894 82,483 FEEA
Other comprehensive income Hit2mEmUIA
Currency translation differences 10,883 1,611 EEENZ5
Total comprehensive income for the year 49,777 84,094 FEZMEWALZE
Total comprehensive income
attributable to: BB ALLE :
— Equity holders of the Company 40,383 76,832 — AN RIIRERZRE A
— Non-controlling interest 9,394 7,262 — FEPEEIMERERS
49,777 84,094
The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial MisERire Mg msBEE s —#9 °

statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

BAEE AR AR

As at 31st March 2011 RA=ZE——F=A=+—H

oy PN
Consolidated Company
22— —E-TF CZT--F —T-IF
2011 2010 2011 2010
FeE FET FHIT FERT TET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 15 16,130 21,441 - - UE - BELREE
Investment property 16 20,000 15,000 - - REME
Intangible asset 21 10,692 - - - BWEE
Land use rights 17 10,728 10,930 - - THifERE
Investments in subsidiaries 18 - = 517,273 528,888 KB ARZEE
Investments in associates 19 156,184 241,304 - - RE2RNFZERE
Deferred income tax assets 20 22,951 25,267 - - EEEREE
Derivative financial instruments 2 2,294 - - - {TESRIA
Total non-current assets 238,979 313,942 517,273 528,888  FEMEIEERLH
Current assets REEE
Inventories 23 389,864 245,720 - - FB
Trade and bill receivables 24 497,362 409,826 - - EUREZREE
Loan receivables 24 19,000 24,500 - - ERER
Prepayments, deposits and BEARE - Be Rk
other receivables 25 142,032 178,756 61 - HEUERER
Derivative financial instruments 22 103 990 - - TEERTIA
Amounts due from associates 19 23,103 52,344 - - EREE AT
Pledged bank deposits 26 41,624 57,182 12,287 12,248  BHEBEITHER
Cash and cash equivalents 26 485,368 160,935 438 381 BeKBEeEHE
Total current assets 1,598,956 1,130,253 12,786 12,629 RBEELE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bill payables 27 313,935 247 473 - - EANRREREE
Receipts in advance 145,621 24,888 - - EWEE
Accrued liabilities and other fEErREREA
payables 28 90,997 99,399 125 107 JEfBRIR
Derivative financial instruments 2 13 = 13 - (TEe®mTIA
Current income tax liabilities 7,932 7,105 - - REASHERE
Borrowings 29 600,144 410,281 3,876 7764 fEE
Totalcurent bt _Lieez TG 404 751 pwREEE
Net currentassets 440,314 1007 8772 4758 ,ﬁﬁﬁé%%ﬁ _________
Total assets less current liabilities 679,293 655,049 526,045 533,646 AEERREEE
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Derivative financial instruments 22 128 133 - 133 HEEmIE
Deferred income tax liabilities 20 1,373 5 - - EERSHEaE
Borrowings 29 - 3,925 - 3925 fEE
Total non-current liabilities 1,501 4003 - 4058 SERBAEEE
Net assets 677,792 650,986 526,045 529,588 BESE
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As at 31st March 2011 RA=—E——F=H=+—H

oEe ¥ N
Consolidated Company
2§ 2T CZT--F —T-IF
2011 2010 2011 2010
BsE TR FHIT TER TExT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable ADRREREAELS
to equity holders of the Company BRAR &
Share capital 30 41,413 41,413 41,413 41,413 (&N
Reserves 32 i
— Proposed final dividend 13 2,485 9,939 2,485 9,939 — B ARHRE
— Others 600,758 569,805 482,147 478,236 —Ht
644,656 621,157 526,045 529,588
Non-controlling interest 33,136 29,829 - - FFEFIMER
Total equity 677,792 650,986 526,045 529,588 fES#AEE
P48 & PREX
Yao Cho Fai, Andrew Lim Kern
EFE HITES
Chairman Executive Director
The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial M RRa MBS HRR BB —%9 -

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Chcrnges in Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2011 & & —

n‘/-ﬁ

ARREDE

T A=+ AILEE

AT RERE AERL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
[ Hitf# s REBF HEE FEMER R
Non-
Retained controlling
Share capital Other reserves earnings Total interest Total equity
FEx FEx FEx FEx BT FEx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Bt&E30) (Bt&E32) (BH=E32)
(Note 30) (Note 32) (Note 32)
As at 1st April 2009 R-EENE
38,143 494,405 5,779 538,327 23,209 561,536 MA—H
Profit for the year = = 75,221 75,221 7,262 82,483  FREHA
Other comprehensive income Hit2EHA
— Currency translation —BBER
differences - 1,611 - 1,611 - 1,611 =%
Total comprehensive income - 1,611 75,221 76,832 7,262 84,094 AZEWALLE
Transfer from retained earnings = 407 (407) = - - HEHERBAZAN
Issuance of shares MR EE1T
— share placement 3,160 12,640 - 15,800 - 15,800 — Bof%
Issuance of shares MR EEIT
— exercise of share options 110 484 - 594 - 594 — 1T{E AR
Lapse of share options = m) M = - - RRZERE
Share option scheme PR T2
— value of services - 2,026 - 2,026 - 2,026 - REEE
Dividends paid to equity holders B R R
of the Company - - (12,422) (12,422) - (12,422) BAEAZEKE
Dividends paid to a BEN—HBARZ
non-controlling shareholder of — iz FEH
a subsidiary - - - - (642) (642) BRER 2 B% B
As at 31st March 2010 R-B-Ef
41,413 511,562 68,182 621,157 29,829 650,986 =A=t+-—H
As at 1st April 2010 R=-Z-ZF
41,413 511,562 68,182 621,157 29,829 650,986 mA—H
Profit for the year - - 31,032 31,032 7,862 38,894 FE A
Other comprehensive income Hip2mEBA
— Currency translation —BHEY
differences - 9,351 - 9,351 1,532 10,883 =5
Total comprehensive income - 9,351 31,032 40,383 9,394 49,777 ZEEWALE
Transfer from retained earnings - 430 (430) - - -  HEEaRAZA
Lapse of share options - (7) 7 - - - Rz ERE
Share option scheme Rt E
— value of services - 793 - 793 - 793 — IR EE
Dividends paid to equity EHZK’A\ETH%’EE
holders of the Company - - (15,323) (15,323) - (15,323) BEAZRE
Disposal of interest in HE— Fﬁﬂﬁﬁ”ﬁ’&
an associate - (2,354) - (2,354) - (2,354) ZHER
Dividends paid to BEN—RRERRZ
a non-controlling shareholder — {7 IR MR R
of a subsidiary - - - - (6,431) (6,431) ZHRE
Capital contribution by —HMBRRZ
a non-controlling shareholder — Rz 4R MR
of a subsidiary - - - - 344 344 ZEREZEA
As at 31st March 2011 R=Z——F
41,413 519,775 83,468 644,656 33,136 677,792 =H=+—-8H
The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial M mir e M mREE . —HD o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GaRETRnER

For the year ended 31st March 2011 B E —T——F=A=+—HILFE
—E—-F —TTF
2011 2010
iE=s TET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZRER
Cash generated from operations 33(a) 39,254 158,407 KEEE RS
Interest received 858 1,314 B IH 8
Interest paid (16,057) (10,612) EH%UE
Hong Kong profits tax 1),/ WEE
(paid)/refunded (2,042) 785 ﬂ S5t
China corporate income tax paid (7,332) (4,161) BB EMER
Macau profits tax paid - (88)  BANRFIFEH
Net cash generated from operating REEHEE L
activities 14,681 145,645 e B
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,620) (7,695  BEWE - FEKXE
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEME - BER
and equipment 33(h) 226 187 RIEEZFT15E0E
Acquisition of an intangible asset 33(e) (5,940) - WE—BEVEE
Proceeds from disposal of interest HE—FBE DR Z
in an associate 33(d) 136,290 - W FTS 3R
Proceeds from disposal of a club debenture 2,038 - HE—BeHE ERE
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- & — R B AR5
sales financial assets upon disposal of HE AL E 2 B
a subsidiary 33(¢) - 2,211 BEZEHR
Purchase of an investment property (20,273) - BE—BREME
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—BEEMEL
property 15,000 23,448 FfSsIE
Amount recovered from a fully impaired WE—TEE 280REZ
available-for-sale financial asset 388 386 EHE 7 HKEE
Net cash inflow from KREZBRALZ
investing activities 126,109 18,537 He 558
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31st March 2011 BiZE = ——F=H=+—HIEFE

—2—-F —T-TF
2011 2010
FifsE TR THBT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Cash flows from financing activities METH2RER
New bank loans 35,970 49,885 FTIBIRITE R
Repayment of bank loans (18,409) (83,065) BERTER
Net increase/(decrease) in trust receipt ERBERTERZ
bank loans 168,395 (53,678) FEM/ i)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BEBEITERRD
deposits 15,558 (21,289) (324n)
Dividends paid to equity holders of ERNARERERSEA
the Company (15,323) (12,422) P ds)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling EN—HBARZ—
shareholder of a subsidiary (6,431) (642) A7 FEIE I AR SR 2 iR B
Proceeds from issuance of shares RIDBAT — 1T RERE
— exercise of share options - 594 28 EIE
Capital contribution by a non-controlling —HWB ARz I3
shareholder of a subsidiary 344 - MR R 2 B EA
Proceeds from issuance of shares D 81T — Bk
— share placement - 15,800 FT35008
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing REEHRA/(GRL)
activities 180,104 (104817 ZEeFE
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 320,894 59365 REMBEEE LM
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of FzHe Rk
the year 160,935 100,679  R&EE
Translation adjustments 4,039 891 [MEHFAE
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 485,868 160,935 FR7BENIRGHE
The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial MRt e M mREE s —HD o

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda on 12th
January 1994 as an exempted company under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The shares of the Company have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 18th February 1994. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “VSC Group”)
are principally engaged in stockholding and trading of
construction materials such as steel products, sanitary
wares, kitchen cabinets, home furniture and plastic
resins, installation work of kitchen cabinets and property
investment.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 17th June 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TESTHERBE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (48
(CONTINUED)

~—r

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The VSC Group is engaged in the trading of steel
products and exposes to the commodity price risk.
At the date of approving these consolidated financial
statements, the VSC Group’s committed sale orders
exceed the aggregate amount of on hand inventories
and committed purchase orders and fluctuations
of steel price could affect the VSC Group’s financial
performance significantly. Further details of financial
risk factors are set out in Note 3 of these consolidated
financial statements.

Although the risk cannot be completely guarded
against, the VSC Group has plans to minimise the
potential impacts. These plans, including adjusting
the level of inventory on hand, committing to supply
contracts with suppliers and/or entering into commodity
futures on steel price, are primarily aimed at reducing
the potential exposure to steel price fluctuation.

The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the VSC Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 I§§§+ BREE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE (5B
(a New and amended standards and @) HIEEEED RN F

48

interpretation adopted by the VSC Group

The following new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretation are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st
April 2010.

HK — Int 5 “Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that contains Repayment on Demand Clause” has
been applied retrospectively for annual periods
beginning 1st April 2010. According to HK — Int 5,
if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”),
which gives the lender a clear and unambiguous
unconditional right to demand repayment at any
time at its sole discretion, a borrower shall classify
the term loan as a current liability in its statement
of financial position, as the borrower does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFTHRHE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mAEE (&)
(a) New and amended standards and (@) EIFEEEE KN AT

interpretation adopted by the VSC Group &l R (5T E R K it 2

(Continued) (%)
AR HEmT

The effect of the adoption of this interpretation is
as below:

=a ESANS

Consolidated Company
—8——F “FT-TF —8-——F “T-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
THET FABT THET FABT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Increase in borrowings B3

— current 8,442 = - - — B 5
Decrease in borrowings EE R
— non-current (8,442) = - = — JEEH

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business Combinations’,
and consequential amendments to HKAS 27,
‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’,
HKAS 28, ‘Investments in Associates’, and HKAS
31, ‘Interests in Joint Ventures’, are effective
prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting period beginning on 1st
April 2010.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 fmAEE (&)
(a) New and amended standards and @) BIESEBERNAFT
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interpretation adopted by the VSC Group
(Continued)

The revised standard continues to apply the
acquisition method to business combinations
but with some significant changes compared
with HKFRS 3. For example, all payments
to purchase a business are recorded at fair
value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-
measured through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. There is a choice on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
All acquisition-related costs are expensed.

The revised standard requires bargain purchase to
be determined only at the acquisition date rather
than at the previous stages. The determination
of bargain purchase includes the previously held
equity interest to be adjusted to fair value, with
any gain or loss recorded in the consolidated
income statement. See Note 21 for further details
of the business combination that occurred in 2011.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1 mEHEE (&)

(a) New and amended standards and (@) BIESEBEFRNZFH

interpretation adopted by the VSC Group
(Continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to
fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. HKAS 27 (Revised) has had no impact on
the current period, as none of the non-controlling
interests have a deficit balance; there have been
no transactions whereby an interest in an entity
is retained after the loss of control of that entity,
and there have been no transactions with non-
controlling interests.

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’. The amendment clarifies that the
potential settlement of a liability by the issue of
equity is not relevant to its classification as current
or non-current. By amending the definition of
current liability, the amendment permits a liability
to be classified as non-current (provided that
the entity has an unconditional right to defer
settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for
at least 12 months after the accounting period)
notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be
required by the counterparty to settle in shares at
any time.
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interpretation adopted by the VSC Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments), ‘Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions’, effective form 1st
April 2010. In addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC)
8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2’, and HK(IFRIC) — Int 11,
‘HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions’,
the amendments expand on the guidance in
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 to address the classification of
group arrangements that were not covered by that
interpretation.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of Assets’,
effective from 1st April 2010. The amendment
clarifies that the largest cash-generating unit
(or group of units) to which goodwill should be
allocated for the purposes of impairment testing
is an operating segment, as defined by paragraph
5 of HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (that is, before
the aggregation of segments with similar economic
characteristics).

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes specific
guidance regarding classification of leases of land,
so as to eliminate inconsistency with the general
guidance on lease classification.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1 mEHEE (&)

(a) New and amended standards and (@) BIESEBEFRNZFH

interpretation adopted by the VSC Group
(Continued)

As a result, leases of land should be classified as
either finance or operating lease using the general
principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.

The adoption of these new standard and
amendments to standards, except for HK Int-5 as
stated above, does not have any significant impact
to the results and financial position of the VSC
Group.

‘Improvements to HKFRSs 2009’, mainly comprises
a collection of amendments to HKFRSs, including
the HKAS 17 (Amendment) as described above. It
is not expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements with adoption of
these amendments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations that are effective but not
currently relevant to the VSC Group

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations are mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1st April 2010, but are
not currently relevant to the VSC Group:

Z2E EERESIEES
| g
HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Classification of Right Issues AR ENRENE [HRoE]
(#3T)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items BRGHEAENE [AERUME
(#3T) Bl
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs BANBREEN  [EAEGNEE
F13% (Z3T) HBaEE
Ell
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  Additional Exemptions %i%ﬁﬁi%ﬁ%?ﬁ@ [BRF#EL
for First-time Adopters 515}5 H‘%D %ﬁ?\‘%ﬁﬁ
HKFRS 5 (Amendment)  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and %C\?%EM%W%EEE‘J [HEEEMNIE
Discontinued Operations #53 (B31) REBEERS
IHEEZK ]
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives Bt (BRMBRE [RAMIET
2EZEe)-2E ANER)
F95%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in Bt (ARMBERS ﬁf“ﬁ’%&ﬁ
a Foreign Operation REZED)-2E FEUA
216%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Asset of Owners B (BRNBRE [REBADER
2EZED)-RE JHLEE
175
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers % ERaKas [BExPEzE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group

The following new standards, amendments
and interpretations have been issued and are
mandatory for the VSC Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st April 2011 or later
periods, but the VSC Group has not early adopted
them:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’, issued in
November 2009 and December 2010. This
standard is the first step in the process to replace
HKAS 39, ‘Financial Instruments: recognition
and measurement’. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classifying and measuring
financial assets and is likely to affect the VSC
Group’s accounting for its financial assets. The
standard is not applicable until 1st January 2013
but is available for early adoption.
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interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group (Continued)

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant
change relates to financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The VSC Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full
impact. The VSC Group will apply the standard
from 1st April 2013.

BB M8 R E X2 FH
FTER - EETREE
(/45)

RUFEAEmMS  ARY
M AaBEAEFHEAT
BEFT AR - FilER
BERBM SRS ERF9
5 IR AFEERAE
mZPBBAaEMmMmS - BRIE
REMEERAF 258
BZEERBLE 2 2
ERBRPELERERS
FTEsEE Al RAEEZ
= & JE B o 2 T B B 75
BEAFEESHEZE

TR E A2 WA 2
P M aEZEERE
SIBZ A FEEEZSHHER
TeEHHELRAER - B

= EFE%QHEW

395% - A FEBEAE
mZWEEEZATERE
m@ THEENERPE

BIEEEEERB BT
WMEEAFESRETEME
T BIEEEEBR =
T— =400 A —HRKKF
AL ZER] o



BIEESEERAR o —ZT—_~FHER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group (Continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party Disclosures’,
issued in November 2009. It supersedes HKAS 24,
‘Related Party Disclosures’, issued in 2003. HKAS 24
(Revised) is mandatory for periods beginning on or
after 1st April 2011. Earlier application, in whole
or in part, is permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the
definition of a related party and removes the
requirement for government-related entities
to disclose details of all transactions with the
government and other government-related
entities. The VSC Group will apply the revised
standard from 1st April 2011.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity Instruments’,
from 1st July 2010. The interpretation clarifies
the accounting by an entity when the terms of a
financial liability are renegotiated and result in the
entity issuing equity instruments to a creditor of
the entity to extinguish all or part of the financial
liability (debt for equity swap). It requires a gain
or loss to be recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments should be
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished.

effective

The VSC Group will apply the interpretation from
1st April 2011. It is not expected to have any
impact on the VSC Group or the parent entity’s
financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group (Continued)

HKAS 12 (Revised), ‘Income Taxes’, issued in
December 2010. It supersedes HK(SIC) — Int 21
‘Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-
Depreciable Assets’, issued in 2004. HKAS 12
(Revised) is mandatory for periods beginning on or
after 1st April 2012. Earlier application, in whole
or in part, is permitted.

The revised standard clarifies that deferred income
taxes on an investment property, carried under
the fair value model in HKAS 40, will be measured
presuming that an investment property is
recovered entirely through sale. The presumption
is rebutted if the investment property is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. It is not expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements with adoption of this amendment. The
VSC Group will apply the amended standard from
1st April 2012.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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(c New standards, amendments and (c) BIES FBFELE IR
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interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 (Revised), ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’, issued in October 2010.
The amendment will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st July 2011, with
earlier application permitted. The amendments
require additional disclosures for risk exposures
arising from transferred financial assets and no
disclosures are required for prior periods. No
significant change in disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements is expected. The VSC Group
will apply the amendment from 1st April 2012.

‘Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, issued in May
2010. The amendments are primarily effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April
2011, with earlier application permitted.

The amendment comprises a collection of
amendments to HKFRSs. It is not expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements with adoption of these amendments.
The VSC Group will apply the amended standard
from 1st April 2011.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group (Continued)

‘Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement’
(@amendments to HK (IFRIC) — Int 14). Without
the amendments, entities are not permitted to
recognise as an asset some voluntary prepayments
for minimum funding contributions. This was not
intended when HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 was issued, and
the amendments correct this. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning 1st
April 2011. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied retrospectively
to the earliest comparative period presented. It
is not expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements with adoption of
these amendments. The VSC Group will apply these
amendments for the financial reporting period
commencing on 1st April 2011.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 iﬂ?%ﬁ‘l‘ BREE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation 2.2 %8 ERE

The consolidated financial statements include the RAMBHRREBEARARE

EMBRARBE _T——%F
ZA=T—HIEZMBHRE -

financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March 2011.

(a) Subsidiaries (@) HEBAAE]

62

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the VSC
Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the VSC
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the VSC Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the VSC Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the VSC Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESFHBERME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)

(CONTINUED)

2 IRERA (&)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 7
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (@ KB A (&)
Inter-company transactions, balances and SEARRZHAZR 5
unrealised gains on transactions between group X%Z%%&*E%Wﬁ
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are TNEH - RERBER
also eliminated. T LA SH o
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been ﬁé\ﬂﬁ\ﬁ%iﬁﬁ%qj B A
changed where necessary in the consolidated EZ%ETEKWEQE&%%E
financial statements to ensure consistency with f’FHﬂE&'ﬁj P AREOR L 5 IE
the policies adopted by the VSC Group. ERERAZERRNE—
By o
In the Company’s statement of financial position EARR A Zﬂﬁﬁ‘%ﬁjﬁﬁ%
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost W ’ EQWEQ\\EjZ&ﬁH?
less provision for impairment losses (Note 2.9), if PANMEHIBR 0B Z R B &
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for B R (M 552.9) o
by the Company on the basis of dividend received RRABHHERRZESA
and receivable. 12 B IR K e AR B B AN
E\E o
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests (b) HEAFEPEH e X5

The VSC Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with parties external to the VSC Group.
Disposals to non-controlling interest result in gains
and losses for the VSC Group and are recorded in
the consolidated income statement. Purchases
from non-controlling interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(©)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the VSC Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
The VSC Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss. See Note 2.9 for
the impairment of non-financial assets including
goodwill.

The VSC Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidation income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the VSC
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the VSC Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESFHBERME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the VSC
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the VSC Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the VSC Group.

Dilution gains and losses in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent BEDEAREERERRE
with the internal reporting provided to the Chief (TxBEERERE]) REA
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), who is responsible EWZ2WAIE T AER
for allocating resources and assessing performance of RHERBIEREZATES
the operating segments, has been identified as the LREBEEEDHCERDER

executive directors that make strategic decisions. AHE RS o

2.3 Segment reporting 23
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation 2.4 SN E
(a) Functional and presentation currency @) DEEFIZSIEH
Items included in the financial statements of each BElEEEEEEER Y
of the VSC Group’s entities are measured using the BMEMIIBEE I UZLE
currency of the primary economic environment BEEMENEEZLER
in which the entity operates (the “functional EHMERGTE((TEEE
currency”). The consolidated financial statements 1) o KRB F MK A
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s BILER  BLAERRE
functional and the VSC Group’s presentation ZNERBEIREREZE
currency. HEHE o
(b) Transactions and balances b) XZRAZEk

Foreign currency transactions are translated into INERBERAR S B ZE
the functional currency using the exchange rates R NEBHBLEN
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or B BREL/NEER - &
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign BUERGELNERK
exchange gains and losses resulting from the =B R A KNS A
settlement of such transactions and from the LEBEBERRBRNAER
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary ERNBMES ZERK
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign wS B RN ERERT
currencies are recognised in the consolidated fEwR

income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities PASNEE DB 2 Al &
denominated in foreign currency classified as ZEBUES 2 AFER
available-for-sale are analysed between translation HE)  RRESFEHEK
differences resulting from changes in the A BB B % 58 75 PR & B
amortised cost of the security, and other changes ZEMBEREEZER
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation EREITOMN - EE K
differences related to changes in the amortised AEBHHREELEZEE
cost are recognised in the consolidated income EFREBEaRRPER K
statement, and other changes in the carrying & 88 2 H B B A0
amount are recognised in equity. R o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2 TERHBAME

(#%&)

i i ; W 468 2
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 HNEEBRE (5)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued) (b) Rizer (E)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial FEBUEMBEE & =
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair & (Blaniz A FEER A
value through profit or loss are recognised as BuZERmTR) 2#RE
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation ERERBERTHRA/A
differences on non-monetary financial assets SFE@HQD%EXEETEZ\_ﬁB
such as equities classified as available-for-sale are e ﬁ =
included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity. <1§U moBRAHEEZ

R CREZHAER
EaPrHHEREN -
(¢ Group companies () FEELA]

The results and financial position of all the VSC
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at

FreEglEEEBEE (8
FEEBRERRER) 2
¥ERTBRRAEEE
BEIARRENEE 15
BT R EREBIEE
W

() BHBRRAKRZIZ
BENBEHAZE

the closing rate at the date of that statement i\%ﬂﬁﬁ%%:@i Bz i
of financial position; TERKRE ;
(i) income and expenses for each income (i) HBEZ= %2451)\&&

statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

HRF I ERRE
(BRIEZTFHEET
FNRRXGBAEREXR
E -7 ae i i )
B EERLTHRA
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 SNE]E (&

68

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the VSC Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged in the consolidated income statement
during the financial year in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

. w o o
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 %t% BERRKE
(Continued) (%)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is YR BEERBIFERE
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate fhat Al 62 AR F IR A B AROA S
their costs to their residual values over their estimated RADBEFGREETE - W
useful lives, as follows: Ik
— Buildings 2% to 5% —BF 2% 2 5%
— Leasehold improvements 20% to 33% —HEMEKE 20%2233%
— Furniture and equipment 15% to 33% — R e B 15%233%
— Machinery 10% to 25% i 10%Z&25%
— Motor vehicles 20% — A= 20%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, BEZRSBREERAERFH
and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end EBERERETRT  RE
date. R o
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately FEREZRES BN HMEE
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount AII Bl 88 - HARTE & B AN Ay
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note WORZE AT B £ 58 o (FYFE2. 9)
2.9).
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by & 2 Wk K B 1R T IR PR 1S 3K
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are REFHASR ZHET - I
recognised in the consolidated income statement. ERGREBRRTER -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Intangible asset 26 BLEE

70

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries or businesses is included in ‘intangible
assets’. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.

2.7 Land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights are
accounted for as operating leases. They are recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the periods of the land use rights, or when
there is impairment, the impairment is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 I§§§+ BREE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Investment property 2.8 REYE (&)

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the companies in the VSC Group, is classified as
investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases. Land held under operating leases are classified
and accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance
lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined by external
valuers at least annually. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the external valuers
use alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the VSC Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Investment property (Continued)

2.8 WEW= (&)

72

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Impairment of investments in 29 RHYBLHE @ BE R F

subsidiaries, associates and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary or
associate in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The VSC Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the financial year end date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The VSC
Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
and bill receivables”, “other receivables”,
“loan receivables”, “amounts due from
associates” and “cash and cash equivalents”
in the consolidated statement of financial
position (Note 2.14 and 2.15).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

20 M HEE ()
ARt E

(b) Recognition and measurement (b)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the VSC Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the VSC Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of other income when the VSC Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary securities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement;
translation differences on non-monetary securities
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as “other gains
— net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of other gains — net when the VSC Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets LN BB EEZRE

Assets carried at amortised cost KB KA SR B

The VSC Group assesses at the end of each reporting BlEE KBRS @RS PR
period whether there is objective evidence that a BREFERBEREAR—
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. WHEEXK —MBAEMS
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is HRRE- AEFEFBE
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if BREARBEARREERESE
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result —REXEREMHEHHIRRME
of one or more events that occurred after the initial (TEESZE] > M= (K&
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss F) BIREBEHZIARK AN
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future BEREEMNBAARARRACRER
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial Pz BR AR EMAE - AlF
assets that can be reliably estimated. MeMBEERMBEEMRS

SHERERELRERE -

The criteria that the VSC Group uses to determine BEEESRERARBEERETHE
that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss REBBREBIERZREN
include: K

*  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or . BOAXEHBABLES
obligor; B E

« A breach of contract, such as a default or - EBRAKH - PlmEEskiE
delinquency in interest or principal payments; REENBHAE :

e The group, for economic or legal reasons relating - REEREERANTER
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to HEMNEERAE
the borrower a concession that the lender would @  AE KA R —
not otherwise consider; BERATEEENRFER

(S3K
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 2N MBREEZRE ()
KB 5 A S R BE ()

« ERABAIERESETT
HA R 5=

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o DB R B R % B A

e The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the portfolio,

EEMIEMEITBRE
£

BRE  REGMBEE
ZEFAARKRREREA T
SEZRD - AR
" R BEFE Rz A & 2 18 7RI BF
BEREENERE  BHEEMN

including: B

() ZEAEZERAZE
SR TR

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

HZHAREERNE
TR EN 2B
o 77 BRI ©

(i) national or local economic conditions that (i)
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The VSC Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists. BlER
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

LN UBEEZRE (&)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the VSC Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

UBIHR A e B (&)

BERSENRBEERATR
BB EERERNERER
mAARRERE (B
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REMEZEZRETE - BERR
[ < B8 T LA HURL - &5 1R & %8
AEGAREERTHER - 8
REAFERNH 2 RERZHHN
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X - EERERT BIRS
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B RIAZAFEEAER
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Derivative financial instruments 220TEERMITA

80

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. Since the derivative instruments
entered into by the VSC Group do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other gains
— net’.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TRETMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

214 FEUR R E Ath FE U BR TR

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

EUWERSERREETRE
An i1 B SR AR 75 T R U = P
ZHIR o INTRHRN —FHAR
(FALDEEF KL BT - AlA
FE) U B e i e K i 8 LU B
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TEERD MEANREE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Trade payables 217 FEAFERFX

82

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the VSC Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the financial year end date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowing costs 219 fEE AR

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisitions, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to item recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the financial year end date in the countries where
the Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax 2.20 %i H R IE E PR 1§ B

(Continued) (#&)

BREMEHINAEEERE
ERBEZHERENGS M
BHRRZEHSEMmE 2 EY
ERFEREER - XM - BE
EFMBEHREBERS (TERE
TEEAH) PHEERAEN
MR MEXZHAZE
S REHERNEE - AT
fERERR - BEMEHRBES
SHAMERMAELRE - I
EERZELEMEREEER
HELEFMERABEE KA
REEM R EIMEE

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
non taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the financial year
end date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the VSC Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TRETMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefits

The VSC Group participates in several defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the VSC Group pays contributions, on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis, into a separate
entity. The schemes are generally funded through
payments to insurance companies or state/trustee-
administered funds. The VSC Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. It has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payment is
available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Bonus plans

(9

The VSC Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonus. The VSC Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Share-based compensation

The VSC Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans, under
which the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the VSC Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
service and performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each financial year end date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (4&)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued) LANETRA (8)
(d) Employee leave entitlements (d) ESEZERH
Employee entitlements to annual leave are BE 2 EREFRIINES

recognised when they accrued to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the financial year end date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.22 Provision

Provisions are recognised when: the VSC Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ;E TR E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Contingent liabilities LB3HAREE
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that KRABIHERBEEMFMA
arises from past events and whose existence will only RELEZAR XRBEFE
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence HEEERERIY |HIR—IA
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly REZBEEIREEERERNIE
within the control of the VSC Group. It can also be a il .2 N EABA K AR F A TR FE
present obligation arising from past events that is not FRBEMAIATHEESEH
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of EEXMATHERZABES
economic resources will be required or the amount of {8 B 7 Al 58 F’ﬁ/llbuujlzﬁ/@&/éf
obligation cannot be measured reliably. HEESEAREA FEFEMA

BHER °
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed KRABEITEWER  BEHE
in the consolidated financial statements. When a change mEMBEREAMNERE - B
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow B R 2 7] B 1 B 2 8 BT BE
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision. MEERE - hEAERER
R -

2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 WA HERR
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration WABRERBIEESREERTE
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services 1B~ 2 B Mk W 2 & o K R
in the ordinary course of the VSC Group’s activities. BHEMEEZ A FEEN
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates, B MAREMBREER - [
returns and discounts and after elimination of sales MEERFNAREET EIR
within the VSC Group. EEBEAIMHE -
The VSC Group recognises revenue when the amount B WS AL SR SEATE - K
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable XZ& EM@mBAIGERARHE
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity - MEBIREEEZEES
and specific criteria have been met for each of the i’jﬁ{:\,ﬂ\ BB IR (BT (W0 T3P
VSC Group’s activities as described below. The VSC i) - BIRE EEE S KK AR
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking R BIEEREEREAER
into consideration the type of customer, the type of WEREFER - XM
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. SRR B2 R B EET ©
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2 %ﬂ%%‘ﬁﬂl%ﬁ%

224 WWARERR (48)

Revenue is recognised as follows: WARERIAT :

(a) Sales of goods @) HEEm
Sales of goods are recognised when a group EEREREERENE
entity has delivered products to the customer, mRXNTESE  TEHH
the customer has full discretion over channel EEMNREMERESR
and price to sell the products, and there is TEE/*E*E BRERE
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the THREAIERERRY
customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery EmmZEWe - BmiiE
does not occur until the products have been BHERAR - EEREHN
shipped to the specified location, the risk of BETEETME - B
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the BXEREHERETER
customer, and either the customer has accepted mEFEREHE S OE
the products in accordance with sales contract, H&Eﬁ’: SR WRFRE AE
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the VSC HBIEEEBERE
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for Tﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁ-’ﬁ_&”ﬂ%?x
acceptance have been satisfied. %QETT?% EmRNAE

EE -

(b) Service income (b) MRFEA
Service income is recognised when the services are RBWASERBELR
rendered. MR o

(c) Rental income () HLHA
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line HeE B ARBRAEOHA

AEARE T LAWERR ©

basis over the period of the relevant leases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TREMHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

224 WARERR (48)

(d)

(e)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of merchandise are recorded as receipts in
advance.

2.25 Operating leases

(a)

(b)

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor), including upfront
payment made for land use rights, are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the leases.

As a lessor

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on the
nature of the asset. Lease income is recognised
over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders
is recognised as a liability in the VSC Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity
holders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 BHE kTR

MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

3.1 B E e R =

The VSC Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including price risk, foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The VSC Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the VSC Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Price risk

The VSC Group is subject to commodity
price risk because certain subsidiaries of
the VSC Group are engaged in the trading
of steel products. As at 31st March 2011,
the VSC Group’s had committed sales orders
of approximately 201,000 metric tonnes
(2010: 216,000 metric tonnes) for which the

BIEEEBE s KREEHEE R
By KRR : m5ER (B
BRER  IMNERRKIRER
%&Qiﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂﬂ BB

EnEEsREk - BIES
%IZ SRR EEEIET
RETE TS5 2 BEFRRIME - W&
ESKREHEIRS EE MK
KB ZBEDFZE o

(@) TR

(i) ERELE
HREIREREZE
THE A B EEM
EmES  HULEIR
EEEmYHMER
B e e R ——F
=A=+—H8" Bl&
ESEE BT EH

selling price is fixed, which exceeded the EBERETETE
aggregate amount of on-hand inventories iH & aT E i’]201 000
and committed purchase orders. Over AW (ZE—FF

the coming year, the VSC Group will be
required to purchase steel products to fulfil
these committed sales orders not covered
by inventories and committed purchase
orders. As the prices of steel products can
fluctuate materially, the VSC Group’s results
may be affected significantly by future
fluctuations in steel prices (Note 4(a)).

216,000 @E)Etﬂ
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PSRRI RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Price risk (Continued)

The VSC Group has entered into steel future
contracts to partly manage its steel price risk
exposures. At 31st March 2011, if the price of
steel future contracts strengthened/weakened
by 10% with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,110,000
(2010: HK$5,403,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a results of a fair value change on these steel
future derivatives.

Foreign exchange risk

The VSC Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures. The VSC Group
may use forward contracts with external
financial institutions to partially hedge
against its foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.

The VSC Group also mitigates the foreign
exchange risk by maintaining HK$, United
States dollar (“US$”) and Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) bank accounts which are used by
the VSC Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies. Foreign
exchange risks on financial assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other
than RMB are insignificant to the VSC Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 BIKRERERE (&)

MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 BBERER (&)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (@) T5ER (&)
(ii) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMEREE (&)

The VSC Group has certain investments
in Mainland China, whose net assets are
denominated in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations to the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland China
government.

At 31st March 2011, if RMB had depreciated/
appreciated by 5% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, profit
before income tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$4,255,000
(2010: HK$3,561,000) lower/higher mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses on
translation of RMB denominated monetary
assets and liabilities.

The fair values of certain forward foreign
exchange contracts are determined using
the quoted US$/HK$ forward exchange
rates. If US$ appreciated against HK$ by
1% with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year
would have been lower by approximately
HK$1,367,000 (2010: HK$1,633,000). If US$
depreciated against HK$ by 1% with all
other variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have been
higher by approximately HK$855,000 (2010:
Hk$1,040,000).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The fair values of certain forward foreign
exchange contracts are determined using the
quoted RMB/US$ forward exchange rates. If
RMB appreciated against US$ by 3% with all
other variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have been
higher by approximately HK$1,850,000. If
RMB depreciated against US$ by 3% with all
other variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have been
lower by approximately HK$5,817,000.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The VSC Group’s interest rate risk arises
mainly from borrowings and interest rate
instrument. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the VSC Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by
cash held at variable rates.

The fair values of the interest rate
instruments are determined using the interest
rate spread between the US$ constant
maturity swap (“CMS”) 10-year rate and
the US$ CMS 2-year rate. The Management
considered that the risk relating to the
interest rate spread above is not significant.

At 31st March 2011, if interest rates on
floating rate borrowings had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$730,000 lower/higher
(2010: HK$1,964,000), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on floating
rate borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 BBEREERE (&)
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

3.1 i ERRERZE (8)
(b) =EEE

Credit risk of the VSC Group mainly arises from
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents
and derivative financial instruments as well as
credit exposures to customers such as trade and
bill receivables, loan receivables, certain amount
of other receivables and amounts due from
associates.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and derivative financial
instruments is limited because the VSC Group
mainly places the deposits in and enters into
derivative financial contracts with banks with high
credit rating and management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by banks.

The VSC Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the VSC
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 BBERERE (&)
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 BiEREZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) 1EEmEE (&)

96

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that the top 10
customers account for 48% (2010: 44%) of the VSC
Group’s total year end trade and bill receivables
balance. Management considers that the credit
risk in respect of these customers is currently low
after considering the financial position and past
experience with these customers. The VSC Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bill
receivables falls within the recorded allowances
and the directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible trade and bill receivable
has been made.

As at 31st March 2010 and 2011, the credit
quality of other receivables has been assessed
by reference to the historical information about
the counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have histories of defaults.

The VSC Group does not have significant exposure
to the remaining credit risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of available
credit facilities, due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying business.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the VSC
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows.

The liquidity of the VSC Group depends on the
terms and conditions of new borrowings and re-
financed existing borrowings. With long-standing
relationships with a group of banks, management
is confident that the VSC Group can secure
sufficient banking facilities for its normal business
operation.

Management believes that they are taking all the
necessary measures to maintain sufficient liquidity
reserve to support sustainability and growth of the
VSC Group’s business in the current circumstances
and to repay outstanding borrowings when
they fall due. Currently, the VSC Group finances
its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations
and bank borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 B EREE (&)
bz (4)

98

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the VSC Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities and net-
settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the financial year end dates to the contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

(C) ///Lsi'fjjﬁi

TRIBINBIEEEE KA
RElZ A B R FRE
HUOEMBaE ke H
EIHRAR R - BEBENEER
ZEAWERB 28T HE
EITOMN e TREE 2
BEAKHRBIBIRER -
& A R E) B v s er i
HEEMASBIEE - MALR
ZHEWTERX °

BB S 1226 k]
Between
Repayahle Less than 1and
on demand 1 year 2 years Total
TET TET TET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Consolidated SE
At 31st March 2011 W-_ZE——%=A=+—H
Trade and hill payables - 313,935 - 313,935 NI RER
Receipts in advance - 145,621 - 145,621 T‘EWMIE
Derivative financial PTHE SR
instruments - 13 128 141 I8
Accrued liabilities and i EER
other payables - 90,997 - 90,997 HiENERR
Borrowings 10,746 589,398 - 600,144 &
Interest payable 601 18,648 - 19,249 FERTFIE
At 31st March 2010 —Zf#=ZRA=+—H
Trade and bill payables - 247473 - 247 473 ERNERLER
Receipts in advance = 24,888 - 24,888 BRMFIR
Derivative financial TSR
instruments - - 133 133 TH
Accrued liabilities and [EErBER
other payables = 99,399 = 99,399 H i EREREL
Borrowings - 410,281 3,925 414,206 fBE
Interest payable = 10,479 = 10,479 TERT RIS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 MHAKREE (&)
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEREZE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

() T"EEzER (&)

BIBHER DME 1226 ok
Between
Repayahle Less than 1and
on demand 1 year 2 years Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Company VNN
At 31t March 2011 NZE——4=A=1+—A
Accrued liabilities and Bt EER
other payables - 125 - 125 H i ERERA
Derivative financial TSR
instruments - 13 - 13 TH
Borrowings - 3,876 - 3,876 f&E
At 31st March 2010 RZE-—ZF=A=+—H
Accrued liabilities and EErBER
other payables = 107 = 107 HEMAERR
Derivative financial TSR
instruments = - 133 133 I8
Borrowings = 7,764 3,925 1689 fBE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of loans with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual
rates. Taking into account the VSC Group’s financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

3 MBEREE (&)

3.1 B ERREZE (&)
() ZEEZER (&)

TRFJIBSEREER
RZERILERDN A
ZaH (BREAHON X
AAEZHAEXH) B
M A ZRBEHIINER
1% 7 2 195 T 2 38 KB ]
x - EFEREEERIES
S B2 WHION - RABIER
T REITEEERN ERKEA
R EEFIR - WAREEE
E K BB RESHIINER
B 2 B R R REE
HEEHRER

SME 1228 2E5% wE
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
TR THET THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Consolidated ey
At 31st March 2011 RZE——%=A=1+—H

Term loans subject to

repayment on

demand clause 2,304 2,304
Interest payable 215 169

At 31st March 2010

Term loans subject to

repayment on

demand clause - -
Interest payable - -

100

BB IEHR

2T
6,138 10,746 =57
217 601 RIS

R-_E-—ZFE=A=+—H
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 HRERERE ()

MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EsRBER

The VSC Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the VSC Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
VSC Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the VSC Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity (excluding non-
controlling interests), as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, plus net debt.

BIEEXEERESNERR
RIEBIEE B FELE 288
7 ARBRRIRMH @R K H A
HEAALTZHE  RERFTEE
BARRBIARDEARKAR -

SRFMEALRE - BB
A 38 &0 1) A BRI £+ 9 B

CREEBEARTFRR - %
1 HHEEELARE -

Iy

o

3? em m 3f

e
-
R

mw-m

RERZ—3 BIEERER
BEARBELRERER - %
R TIA R B ERRAE N
AEBH - FRBINERR
B (BERCESAMBMRAR
EPZ?ﬁ%iJ&?F?ﬁ@JFE?)?BZE
BERRTEFREREERE

B8 - EXHE %ELM%EEE(T
BIEJEEFEES) - MESRE
MBARRRR - UFRER

St
= o
Ean

101



Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited * Annual Report2011

Notes to the Consolidcated Financial Statements

e

102

PSRRI RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st March 2011 and at 31st March
2010 were as follows:

3 MBEREE (&)

32 5E€ERERE ()

R-E——F=A=+—HE
—T—FTF=-_A=+—HzE&

REEEEQT
—B——F —E-FF
2011 2010
F#ExT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Total borrowings (Note 29) 600,144 414206 fEE#5E (MsF29)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REMREEERE
and pledged bank deposits EHRRITFEH
(Note 26) (527,492) (218,117) (FzE26)
Net debt 72,652 196,089 F A&
Total equity (excluding REemiREE (NEREIEEE S
non-controlling interest) 644,656 621,157 W)
Total capital 717,308 817,246 & ARMBEE
Gearing ratio 10% 24% BAXRBELX

The gearing ratio decreased during the year due to
proceed from disposal of interest in an associate.

REZHE EREBLET
BRSNS —EHEATY
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3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The VSC Group uses the following hierarchies for
determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

3 MBEREE (&)

33 AP EERGE
818 2 9% 838 F LA TR 5 DA
EEREBOMIAZATE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

33 AFEEMLE (&)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at 31st

=

A—E——F=A=1+—Hi&

March 2011: ANEEBEMFECEERARE
E—E =B B=E e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHET F&ET THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Assets — Consolidated BE — &8
Steel future contracts 2 - - 2 A EE A 4
Forward foreign RHASNE S 4
exchange contracts - 2,395 - 2,395
2 2,395 - 2,397
Liabilities — Consolidated aE — 4
Forward foreign L,Hﬂ?\\[ & 4
exchange contracts - 128 - 128
Interest rate instrument - 13 - 13 F=TE
- 141 - 141
Assets and liability measured at fair value as at 31st RZE—ZFTF=ZA=+—H&
March 2010: NEEBEFECEEREE
E—Z F_= FE== 4=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Assets — Consolidated BE — &8
Steel future contracts 980 - = 980 MM EAEA 4
Forward foreign RHAONE S 4
exchange contracts = 10 = 10
980 10 — 990
Liability — Consolidated BE &4
Interest rate instrument = 133 = 133 FETA
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3 FINANCIAL RISK 3 MHRAKRERE (&)
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AR EEMRE (&)
Liability measured at fair value as at 31st March 2011: RZE——F=ZA=+—H&%
NEEEFEZARE
E—E B E=E B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHBT FH&x FH&xT F#Bx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Liability — Company a5 — AT
Interest rate instrument - 13 - 13 =T E
Liability measured at fair value as at 31st March 2010: RZE—ZF=ZA=+—H0&
NEEEFEZEE
EH=E FE F=E 4=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T THIT TFHTT T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Liability — Company A& — ANAT
Interest rate instrument - 133 - 133 METE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The VSC Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Onerous contracts

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group had committed
sales orders which exceeded the aggregate amount
of on-hand inventories and committed purchase
orders. Management expects the cost of certain future
purchases to fulfil these sales orders will exceed the
contracted selling prices of the sales orders and hence a
provision for onerous contracts has been made.

In estimating the amount by which the cost of
purchases are expected to exceed sales prices of
committed sales orders, management takes into account
the cost of on-hand inventory, the cost of committed
purchase orders and the forecast market price of future
purchases where this can be reliably estimated. For the
sales orders which the management expects to fulfil
after 31st August 2011, no provision has been made
since management considers the loss, if any, arising
from fulfilling such orders, cannot be reliably estimated
at this time.

As at 31st March 2011, if steel prices had weakened/
strengthened by 10% relative to the management’s
expected cost of purchase of steel inventories with all
other variables held constant, profit before income
tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$20,487,000 (2010: HK$23,762,000) higher/lower.

ER = n-I?E &51:“3&

PRER A 2 1 E R A T & A R
T UUBEERMEMARER
it BRERATHARENZ
BIRTEE -

%M%%E%%Kﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ
cfEER - BltMAEZEETHE
7ffT4 B 2 BSR4 RAER - B
maﬂ&%ﬁT—MﬁEEZQE
&ﬁﬁZ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%Zﬁ
R B TSGRl o

(a) BERY

R=—ZT——F=H=+—H -
EEEEEERTE ZHER S
Etﬂiﬂﬁ &E%mz%
LB % TEEERE
X%Mﬁi%v%aﬂiZE
THEBR ARG ST BT
HEBEARE  AHEREE
ZNELEAE -

EHEERBERALLDREHE
RBEZHEBRZESEAR
B EEECAHETFAREZ
A - BREERBERE 2
R EERRMSHAE
REZER BRNEEERE
REER SEMIEE A m B RN
—E——F\A=+—HEKRE
TZHERTEZEE  1hE
IR B LI FRT B R o

m T——F=ZfA=+—8 "
= A B A% A I A AR
BV EEZRA (FrE ] &
EE#®FRLE) TKEF
10% + F 2 B B A Al 15 2 18
o0,/ 3 A 4920,487,00058 7T (—
T —FF 23,762,000/ 7T) °
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BEEGTHHEERAER
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (&
(CONTINUED)

(b) Net realisable value of inventories (b) FEZ A2 FE

~—rF

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer demand relevant to steel and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycle. Management reassesses the estimations at each
financial year end date.

(c) Trade and other receivables

The VSC Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivable based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current market
condition. Management reassesses the provision at each
financial year end date.

(d) Income taxes and deferred income tax

The VSC Group is mainly subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau. There are
certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The VSC Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

FEZAZRFERATER
BIE & R B SEROK
ARAIBHESH - REHE
TR 3 B TS A R B AE B 8H
EROAMEER I BEERS
H%E - HAaIRFF Y 2®
K LB F RN ERIR
TEBEHREZITEIMARN
g EHREENSELERE

R

(0) FEUR R H A FE U AR X

BIEERE 2 EEEYHEKK
KA ERE 2 FE - REE
JFE Ui e A W B R 2 R (L
o ZAHATREER REM
BBAZEEELARRET
AREE - EBESNBEL
EREMHEE -

(d) FrEBRELEFTSH

BIEEREXZ2EHMNEL
PEAMERFZFAFHR - ©
BEEKEED  BEZRE
BERRBIAZIR 5 M8 -
EEESE#EERRENAN
AMEESNRIR - T BE AR TR
MBESZEEZRE  WZE
FEZREBBERERI
BRI AREZREEY
EELETHRANZAENR R
EEFTIS R -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Income taxes and deferred income tax
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

(e) Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The VSC Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at each financial year end date. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions
in response to severe industry cycle. Management
reassesses the estimations at each financial year end
date.

(f) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The VSC Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.6. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (Note 21).

4 BEREHEERAE

(&

M=

(d)

~—rF”

RN

pil

FTSH RIEEFT IS8
(%)

1125 B 1B 3228 R 2R P SR BB 7
B R {E SHE 2 R S B
I8 T8 RS - AR R
ETERMERRBERRS
2B BAE - thIaH
BREREZHETR BEH
ERERHEMRELRED
2 E3 R PO IE P 15 B4 B IR PR
B2 R E -

TTERHMEMTAZ
DFEE

HNERTISEEZSBMTA
2 DB TY A 1 R
T o HIIE S W R ST A
EETRTEREEENGHE
HHBHFEZTISERIE R
& o HTRDIBERAEN &
41T %A IR T BT A MR 25
2 EREERNEALEAE
EREHE -

BEREHER

818 2 £ EARIRA R2. 62 Bt
B SFERBBETRER
B ReELEMZAKES
WRBERBENE - 1Es
HEBEAEE (HiE21) -
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

The VSC Group’s revenue consists of the following:

e M ERRME

5 WAKZERER

SBIEEEE 2 WABIFEWT ¢

—E——F T—FF
2011 2010
TExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Sales of goods 4,204,052 3,244,042 EmiHE
Revenue from installation contracts - 3,401 ZTEIRWA
Service income 3,070 3,282  fRFEUTA
Rental income 646 1,111 FHEWA
Total revenue 4,207,768 3,251,836 Y A 42%8
The VSC Group’s businesses are managed according to the BlEESEZRELENE MATIRMH

nature of their operations and the products and services they
provide.

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the VSC Group’s CODM that
are used to make strategic decisions. The CODM considers
the VSC Group operates predominantly in four operating
segments:

(i)  Steel distribution;
(i) Building products;
(iii)  Plastics resins; and
(iv) Property investment.

The VSC Group’s CODM assesses the performance of operating
segments based on a measure of profit before income tax.
This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring
expenditure from the operating segments, such as legal
expenses and impairments, when the impairment is the
result of an isolated, non-recurring event.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the CODM determined that the result of
“Property investment” shall be separated reported as the
VSC Group planned to increase the investment on this front.
The result of “Property investment” was previously included
in the segment of “Other operations” in prior years. Certain
last year figures have been reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation.

ZEmEIR f“%? FHRH

ERECETHEEND S
CEPSPES £ PSS
&R HIERBRIDRE - EBEE
REERABIESEEEBLEN
BB

(i) Mo
(i) BEER
(i) ZBERE &
(iv) BHIEIRE -

BIEESEBZ X BLEBERARERRK
ﬁmmﬂZHﬁﬁ%ﬁ BN
R o W ERAETBRELED S
$%@%ﬁ§ﬁ2%ﬂ EEE
BREBYRIEKEEEEEEEZR
fH °

FEELERKEERREHIA
T2 WAZFENRREG S MR
R—H

AEEHHE aREBIES KBS
B EHERE | 2®RE - FitE:
BEERREREHR [FHERE ]
ZEEHTFERE HBERK] o
MABUER - EFBOBFRKE
AR A ARFRE 2B o
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDEBER (E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Analysis of the VSC Group’s results by business segment for BEESEREBE=_ZT—F=H4
the year ended 31st March 2011 is as follows: =T HIFEREBDB2EE
DT :
@i2¥  BEER  EBHE RHERE  HibER AR a5
Steel Building Plastics Property Other
distribution products resins investment  operations  Unallocated Total

TRR TRR TER TRR TRR TRR TRR
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000

External revenue 3,465,874 370,156 371,002 646 - - 407,768 HAHKA

Operating profit/{lss| 34,955 453 12,531 (1,378 39,667 (40,762) 69546 EEHA /(KB

Finance income 305 51 7 10 49 56 858 BEUA

Finance costs (21.273) (2,009) (577) (50) Yl (210) (241200 EHER

Share of profits/{losses) of EEBE AR
associates - net 878 - - 6,724 (976) - 6626  /(FE)- B8

Profit/{loss) hefore income tax 14,865 0,575 11,961 5,306 39,113 (40,916) 52904 REtAEA /(B8

Other gains/(losses) - net (2,195] 450 364 (309) 8,113 3,003 M426  ElE /(FE)- 38

Depreciation and amortisation (1,520) (1,791) 38) )] - (3,803) (7153 HERES

Income tax (expense)/credit (13,915) (3,933 (2,027) 407 (65) 5,523 (14,0100 FE8 (XH)/3tA
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDEBER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Analysis of the VSC Group’s results by business segment for BEESEREBEE—_Z—ZTF=A1
the year ended 31st March 2010 is as follows: =T HIFEREBD B2 EE
DT -
Wod  BEER  PBEE BHERE  EtER AR a3
Steel Building Plastics Property Other
distribution products resins investment  operations  Unallocated Total

Thr Th ThL ThL Th ThL Thr
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(g&5)  (&&5)  (&%5)  (@E5)  (@Ej)  (4E3)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

External revenue 2,621,004 366,161 261,730 1,028 1913 - 3251836 HAMIA
Operating profit/(lss) 130,968 1731 105522 10,079 (5,125) (27.429) 136326  SEEF /(5E)
Finance income 17 - 6 - u 1112 1314 BEKA
Finance costs (16970) (799) ) - (446) (1,046) 1998) BER
Share of (losses)/profits of EEBENT (BE)/
associates - net 1018 - - 10,182 (24,096) - (1280  &fl- %8
Profiti{loss) before income tax 115,188 16513 9,806 20,261 (29,643) (27363) 04762 BHEAES /(58)
Other gains/(losses) - net (29.276) 5 (109) 10448 885 23,286 539 Eflis /(BB)- 38
Depreciation and amortisation (1143) (1,774) (40) - - (3,965) (6922 WEREH
Income tax (expense)/credit (13,557) 3893) (1,539) (409) (141) 7,25 (2279 FER (LH)/FA
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Analysis of the VSC KARREAELE BIEESE 2
Group’s revenue by geographical market is as follows: WA E TS DT T
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
F#ExT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Revenue WA
Mainland China 2,014,427 1,927,090 HEIAH
Hong Kong 2,193,341 1,324,746 HHB
Total revenue 4,207,768 3,251,836 UK A#ZE
For the year ended 31st March 2011, revenue of BHE—_ET——F=HA=+—HIt®F
approximately HK$353,325,000 (2010: HK$365,117,000) was JE » #9353,325,00008 T (=Z & — =
derived from a single external customer. £ 1 365,117,00078 7T ) Z WA THHREX

8 —fIENEP -
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6 OTHER GAINS - NET

6 Hpttls — FER

—E——F T —FF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Provision for onerous contracts (5,483) (32,429) HER# 2 #iE
Gain on disposal of interest in HE—HEE AR ER L
an associate 40,419 - Was
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—IRREYHE 2 W
property - 10,448
Fair value loss on an investment — IR EME L NFEE
property (Note 16) (273) - &8 (M5E16)
Fair value gains on interest FMETAZ AFEEKE
rate instruments 120 3,778
Net fair value change on forward foreign FEEE AB 2 = EINE
exchange contracts held for trading 2,257 (120) BHZ AT EEFES
Net fair value change on steel future MRS 2 AT ER
contracts (978) 980 TR
Realised loss on steel future contracts (4,935) - MMHIEAEHZEIEES
Gain on disposal of a club debenture 2,038 - HE-—HgE W=
Gain on disposal of the & — KB A A5 2
available-for-sale financial assets &N E 2 M
upon disposal of a subsidiary - 1,631 BEZ W=
Net exchange gain 10,410 509 FE K UES
Amount recovered from a fully impaired WE—IAE 2EURE
available-for-sale financial asset 388 386 ZAEHE 2K EE
Consulting services income AR BRTEHA
(Note 36(a)) - 19,634 (P36 ()
Sundry income 463 422 WA
44,426 5,239
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3¢ 3T ==
6 OTHER GAINS — NET 6 Hfttlhzm — F5E ()
(Continued)

. . . . D RSN TR
Disposal of interest in an associate HE—EBEQATRZER
On 3rd June 2010, CAMP (B.V.I.) Holdings Limited (“CAMP RZF-—FTF A=A BIESE
BVI”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the VSC Group, entered SE—HE2ENE R CAMP
into a share repurchase agreement with Ryerson Pan-Pacific (B.V.1.) Holdings Limited ([ CAMP
LLC (“Ryerson”) to dispose the remaining 20% interest in BVI]) - EE&2Ryerson Pan-Pacific LLC
Ryerson China Limited (“Ryerson China”) that was classified ([Ryerson|) FTSZ A D BB EI #5557
as investments in associates as at 31st March 2010. BEHESRTREBETEBRA

([T E]) Z20%Es= - HE
RZE—ZFF=H=1T—Bo8EA
REEERA2IZE o
The following table summarises the calculation of gain on ARG ERR S A2 E RS
disposal at the transaction date. AR IR At -
—E——F
2011
FET
HK$’000
Cash consideration 136,290 IHERE
Investment in an associate (98,225) R—FHEERRIZRE
Release of investment revaluation reserve 17 BORESGHEE
Release of cumulative foreign currency translation

adjustments 2,237 [0 RET N [E A EE

Gain on disposal of interest in an associate HeE — BN 2R

40,419 ZWEs
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows: ™
—E——F T -FF
2011 2010
FExT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Raw material consumed and finished R R FE A
goods sold 4,019,698 3,018,978 KB miHE
Write-back of provision of impairment e B E
of inventories (871) (65,504)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - REREEZITE
equipment 6,951 6,720
(Gain)/loss on disposals of LEYZE - BRERE&E
property, plant and equipment 2 (Wz)/ E5i8
(Note 33(b)) (6) 1,372 (F5E33(b))
Amortisation of land use rights 202 202 T ih{FFERE 2 N
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 73,293 76,645 EERALZH (MzEs)
Operating lease rental expense in T RAEF
respect of land and buildings 14,586 14,709 HHHEE
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment JiE U BR SR E
of trade receivables (4,944) 8,267 (Btml), /Bt
Provision for impairment of other B FEUT AR K
receivables 1,195 - NERIERELe]
Auditor’s remuneration 1,700 1,500 1% EREDEN 2
Others 70,844 57,860 Efth
Total cost of sales, selling and SHEKA « SHE R H
distribution expenses and general S E— R RITEE
and administrative expenses 4,182,648 3,120,749 4axy
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS)

e M ERRME

{0

i

8 EERANZH (BEE
EM<)

=

—E——F T —FF
2011 2010
FE&xT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries and allowances 59,308 55,887 & KOERL
Bonus 4,706 13,904 FEAL
Pension costs — defined contribution RIS — RERK
plans 4,780 3,099 FTEl
Share option scheme — value of services 793 2,026 FERERE - REEE
Welfare and benefits 3,706 1,729  Flz & A&F
73,293 76,645

The VSC Group maintains two defined contribution pension
schemes for its employees in Hong Kong, the ORSO Scheme
and the MPF Scheme. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the VSC Group under independently
administered funds.

Under the ORSO Scheme, each of the VSC Group and its
employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees
who have terminated employment could be utilised by the
VSC Group to reduce its future contributions.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the VSC Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employee’s relevant income, as defined in the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both
the VSC Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subject
to a cap of HK$1,000 per month. The contributions are fully
and immediately vested for the employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
VSC Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for
employees of its subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
The employees are entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their
length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The VSC Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond these contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

BB S & & 45 mE R TR NS #
FEABTURETEZRE DS
eI RREEAE - WMERE
BEVEEIREREZEEN R
B UYHRBUESERE -

RIEAEERE BIEERERE
BEARBEZE TWAZ5%MA %
AAEMEEARR - REEBRZET

FE NSO HEIRSRERE
BRI 2 B

RizeEestE BEIEEEBERA
BEASBREBRIELTERK
PITRESEBEZEERRABRAL
swiAazat EMEE AR - BIRE K
BLEEMECBARRLERER
1,000/8 7T » A2 & RN SR B T
’8 -

RiFEAMES - BIEESRBEA
RERINPEARMZHEARZ
EERHEBEREBRKG SR -
BEEARERSRART 2H2RKRE
BRARFNENH & KRS F R
FRABRFHRAGERSL - BIRES
B 88 X NHE R B BRI 2 SRR
‘BN - ZFBEREENRTEIA
BERRKEENEZEHEARSE -

115



Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited * Annual Report2011

Notes to the Consolidcted Financial Statements

e M ERR MR

116

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2011, the aggregate
amount of the VSC Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately
HK$4,780,000 (2010: HK$3,099,000), net of forfeited
contributions of approximately HK$277,000 (2010:
HK$526,000). As at 31st March 2011, there is no unutilised
forfeited contribution which could be utilised to reduce
future contributions of the VSC Group (2010: nil).

DIRECTORS" AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every Director for the year ended
31st March 2011 is set out below:

BHE_ZT——F=A=+—HItF
EHHE BIRE&EY LR ke
T8l Z (3R FE 44,780,000/ 7T (=
T —F4F : 3,099,000/ 7T) 1 FHRUK
B 49277,0008 T (= —ZTF ¢
526,000 L) c R=ZZE——F = A
=+—H TERAEIBRERK
HAFBEARERLBEIES EE KK
ZHR(ZE—TF ) o

O EERSHREEAEH

&

) E=M<

BHE_ZT——F=A=+—H
HFEBUEEMSWT ¢

EIRER  EREGE
e HEREH MERAY eHBofty —HREEE g
Employer's  Share option
contribution scheme
Salariesand  Discretionary  to pension - value of
Fees  allowances honus® scheme services Total
TiEn TiEn TR TEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive directors HiTEE
M. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew - 1,206 1,000 12 - 2218 hEBEE
Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Fernando - 429 200 12 - 641 EfEEE
Mr. Kern Lim - 1,910 - 61 429 2,400 ik
Independent non-executive BuEaa
directors S
Mr. Harold Richard Kahler 350 - - - - 350 Harold Richard Kahlert &
Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny 120 - - - - 120 EBExE
Mr. X Lin Bao 120 - - - - 120 BHERE
590 3,545 1,200 85 429 5,849
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Q DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT"
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every Director for the year ended
31st March 2010 is set out below:

O EENEREEANSHE

& (&)

(@) EEM<E (&)

BE-F-TF=A=1-F
LFESHEFMEMT

EXREA  EREE
e HeREd WERAD 2ialzt  —RBEE %
Employers  Share option
contribution scheme
Salariesand  Discretionary to pension - value of
Fees allowances bonus” scheme Services Total
TAL T T THIL AL ThL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive directors HIES
M. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew - 1206 - 1 - 1218 #hAEERA
Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Fernando - 429 - 1 - W EttEs
Independent non-executive BYFHT
directors EE
Dr. Chow Yei Ching 120 - - - - 120 FRRET
Mr. Harold Richard Kahler 349 - - - - 349 Harold Richard Kahler /o
Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny 120 - - = - 120 ERERE
Mr. Xu Lin Bao 120 - - - - 10 BHERE
709 1635 - ] - 2368
Note: MfzE -

(i) The executive directors are entitled to discretionary
bonuses which are determined with reference to the
financial performance of different business units of
the VSC Group.

The share option scheme — value of services represent
charges to the consolidated income statement of
the fair value of the share options under the share
option scheme measured at the respective grant dates,
regardless of whether the share options would be
exercised or not.

No director waived any emolument during the year.
Incentive payment of HK$200,000 (2010: nil) as an
inducement for a director was paid during the year.

() MTERIVZA2REIREERE
TREBEM B RAMETE
ZBIBIEAT -

BREA S - RBEERERBR
EEBREWITE  BEIARRL
BHZAFEERGESBRERTI
fERX °

REEHRE - WEBAESRETM
e o AFEHEIHE - 219200,000%8
T (ZE—ZF : |) cMET
SEDAESEBIIA o

117



Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited * Annual Report2011

Notes to the Consolidcted Financial Statements

e M ERR MR

118

@ DIRECTORS' AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT"
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the VSC Group include two directors (2010:
one) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in Note 9(a) above. The emoluments paid/
payable to the remaining three (2010: four) individuals
during the year are as follows:

EEkSREEASH
& (&)

(b) EEERSHFHAL

BIEEEBHTOAURSHAL
HPEREMUER (ZT—F
Fi—f) BzMeome
#H P K EE9@) o R =1L
(ZF—FF : @fz) ALRE
FEARMZEN /BN H 20

T
—E——F —E—TF
2011 2010
F& T TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries and allowances 3,515 4,958 g N&oEBL
Bonus 1,599 387 fEAL
5,114 5,345
—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
The emolument fell within B 3= 28 Bl o 7
the following bands: LU
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — 1,000,001 L2
1 3 1,500,000/ 7T
— HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 —1,500,001/8 T2
1 = 2,000,000/ 7T
— HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 2,000,001}\%77::?:
1 1 2,500,000/ 7T
3 4

Incentive payment of HK$200,000 (2010: nil) as an
inducement for a director was paid during the year.

No emoluments were paid/payable to the other four
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
the VSC Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year.

AEZEME - 2 14200,000% 7T (=
T—TF @) HeTNUES
LAYESZBhANA o

AERHHE TEXMNEANS T
% H BRI AL A% = A £ PAYE S B N
ABIES S E S (ERERA(E -
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10FINANCE INCOME AND 10 W AREH
COSTS
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Finance income BRI
Interest income: FIEUA -
— short-term bank deposits 702 341 — FEHIRIT
— from receivables 156 973 — RE W
858 1,314 -
Finance costs Bi5E A
Interest expenses: FEX W -
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —HRAFANEHEE
within five years (16,039) (10,612) ZIR1TTIEE
Bank charges (8,087) (9,370) R1TEH
e (24126) (19982 .
Net finance costs (23,268) (18,668) HEIEE H
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I11INCOME TAX EXPENGSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong.

The National People’s Congress approved the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “CIT
Law”) on 16th March 2007 and the State Council announced
the Detail Implementation Regulations (“DIR”) on 6th
December 2007. According to the CIT Law, the income tax
rates for both domestic and foreign investment enterprises
are unified at 25% effective from 1st January 2008. However,
for enterprises which are established before the publication
of the CIT Law and are entitled to preferential treatments of
reduced income tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities,
the income tax rate is gradually increased to 25% within 5
years after the effective date of the CIT Law. Enterprises that
are currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from the
standard income tax rate for a fixed term continue to enjoy
such treatment until the fixed term expires. During the year,
subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to
China corporate income tax at rates ranging from 22% to 25%
(2010: 20% to 25%).

The amount of income tax expense recorded in the
consolidated income statement represents:

11 Frf5fixx

ARRERCHMEREFRBEES
ZE—RF

EBFNERBIERASIENAE S
7 2 h AT B BR O A e B R16.5%
(ZE—T4F : 16.5%) fEH B -

RZZTZT+F=ZA+"BH 2BA
RREREBBEFEARLME D
XMBHE(RERSRELD -
MBABREIIR _EZLF+ = AKX
BB I E rE A B (&5 & i 48
Al]) - IRIBEEMETE - AR
INEREZHBMEG ST NF
—HA—HBHREE —R25% A 5
REEMSRERMGRIR LY ZS
HEABRSRER T REMSHRER
MEZLEMS ' IEHEE RS
FIT 13 B VA B 2 185F M Z 18 &
25% ° BRI B ER — & EEHEES
EEMBHERB IR L 2 B -
AEEZEZESE  BEEZRE
FEHRER AL - AFEEEHE - B
f B R AR S 2 BT B A B R R
F22%E25% (= & — T F : 20%=
25%) SIS HRB TS o

77

RiEEEHEERPHERBZAFHH

—B——F —T—FF
2011 2010
FHExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current income tax EHRTE
— Hong Kong profits tax (2,006) (1,822) — BENER
— China corporate income tax (8,098) (2,558) — R ERER
Deferred income tax (Note 20) (3,906) (17,493) EIEFTSHEL (MI5E20)
Under provision in prior years - (406) BEFE 2 (KIEEE
(14,010) (22,279)
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11INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(Continued)

The tax on the VSC Group’s profit before income tax and

11 Fristised (48)

BB S & EERH R EHE S QB
M (E8R) — F8aa N 2 HIE

before share of profits/(losses) of associates — net differs from

the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted BRAR & BB A 2 I T B =
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated EZERSBEAMEE  FBEW
entities as follows: s 8
—E——F —E—TF
2011 2010
FTER T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit before income tax and before MR & FE (L B A |
share of profits/(losses) of wmA (&)
associates — net 46,278 117,658 — FEER Al

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the respective

countries (9,851)
Income not subject to tax 1,227
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (2,639)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred

income tax assets (3,108)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised

tax loss 361

Under provision in prior years -

RERNBEZERZ EH
MEEFTE ZHA

(20,529)

2,209 EAER WA
(861) AT Z X H
W ERERBELEFSREE
(2,692) ZHIEEIE
AT R R Z T IE
- i
(406) BEFE 2 KAHEE

Income tax expense (14,010)

(22,279) AR

For the year ended 31st March 2011, the weighted average
applicable tax rate was 21.3% (2010: 17.4%). The increase
is due to the impact of the increase in profit of PRCs
subsidiaries.

12PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of a profit of approximately HK$10,987,000 (2010:
HK$10,687,000).

HE-_ZT——F=HA=+—HItF
€ pEFHEBAHREA213% (=
T T 174%) - EEMZ AR
IR B A R 2 % A EFHRTEL o

12 AR B IRERE AES

a2 )

RNARIRERE ARG SRR
BARRB R A EIREFTHB L
10,987,000/ JT 2 @ Al (Z T — &
£ 1 10,687,00078 7T ) °
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BB wRMEE
13DIVIDENDS
g%
2011
TR
HK$’000

138

T2

2010
TAT
HK$'000

Interim dividend of HK1.3 cents
per ordinary share (2010: HK3 cents) 5,384
Proposed final dividend of HK0.6 cents
per ordinary share (2010: HK2.4 cents)
2,485

B AR B AR A AR 3L
12,422 (ZZ—FF : 3Bl)
EEAREgREER
0.6781
9,939 (ZZ—ZF : 24/80)

7,869

22,361

A final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2011 of HKO0.6
cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$2,485,000 (2010:
HK$9,939,000), has been recommended by the Directors for
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company. The proposed dividend has not been dealt with as
dividend payable as at 31st March 2011.

14EARNINGS PER ORDINARY
SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

EFEERBETZAAFRKRE
BAFEAG EHERNBEZE S ——
E—ﬂ—ﬂ'*ﬁﬁifﬂiﬁﬂﬂi

% 38 BR0.678 1l - & $£2,485, 000,%
75(_ —Z4F 1 9,939,000/ 7T ) °
ZEZERBIRER-E——F=
A=+—RZEEHRIABEMEE -

14 8REERER

(@) &ER
STESREBERERNATTIE
KR AR B A B RF R
AR 217 E B 2 INHEF

shares in issue during the year. BRGHE -
—E2——F —=F
2011 2010
Profit attributable to equity holders RAGIRER B ALELS
of the Company (HK$000) 31,032 75,221 smA (FATT)
Weighted average number of BT T R I
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 414,128 401,955 BHE (i)
Basic earnings per ordinary share BREBRERET
(HK cents) 7.49 18.71 (L)
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14EARNINGS PER ORDINARY 14 BREBRERN (&)

SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

+
t

4

X

~7

Diluted earnings per ordinary share is calculated by AESREBREERN IR

adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive
potential ordinary shares is arising from share options,
for which a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair

REMBAECEHEEE 2 &
BEREETRMARAERED
BTEBRZINEFHE - K
RElZABGEHEHE 2 &8
BABEEmMES - H5t&E D
R i AR 1T 2 BB B A P B 2 3R

BEZEKEEEL AUE
AIREARFEE(BFTAN
RAEPZ2FFANSERE)
WEZ B 288 » EXFrE
BZBRMEB T RRRBRE
TTEME #1720 8B 1ELL

value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the

share options. e
—E2——5F —ZT—%F
2011 2010
Profit attributable to equity holders of KA FIREREB ARG
the Company and used to determine AR FAERT S
diluted earnings per ordinary share LB EE AT
(HK$'000) 31,032 75221  (FiT)
Weighted average number of ordinary 2517 T B 2 g
shares in issue (000) 414,128 401,955 BE (FAR)
Adjustment for share options (000) 8,630 1,978 FHEEEERKE (F10)
Weighted average number of ordinary BRETRREERN
shares for diluted earnings per L3 AR DN 25 2
ordinary share ('000) 422,758 403,933 (FM%)
Diluted earnings per ordinary share Bk EmRES AT
(HK cents) 7.34 18.62 OBL)
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15PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15912 ~ REKFZE
EQUIPMENT
&a
Consolidated

HEM=
£ &

BF SET BE RE a5
Leasehold
improvements,

furniture and Motor
Buildings  equipment Machinery vehicles Total

TERL TERL TERL TET TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Year ended 31t March 2010 BE-Z-%
ZRA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount 3,849 16,114 438 1,616 n0M7  HOREFE
Additions - 1,856 = 5,839 7,695 RE
Disposals - (1,138) = (421) (1559) (&
Depreciation (116) (5,511) (161) (932) (6,7200 &
Exchange differences 1 3 = 4 8 ELES
Closing net hook amount 3,734 11,324 277 6,106 21441 BEREREFE
At 31st March 2010 R_Z—FF
ZR=1+-H
Cost 4,403 35,029 5,559 10,382 55373 B
Accumulated depreciation (669) (23,705) (5,282) (4,276) (33932) RitiE
Net book amount 3,734 11,324 277 6,106 1441 REEE
Year ended 31st March 2011 HE_Z——F
ZR=1-BIt%¥E
Opening net book amount 3,734 11,324 277 6,106 21,441 HIRERE
Additions - 1,605 15 - 1,620 INE
Disposals - (220) - - (2200 HE
Depreciation (117) (5,298) (93) (1,443) (6,951) HE
Exchange differences 1 54 - 175 240 [EHEE
Closing net book amount 3,628 7,465 199 4,838 16,130  HIREEFEE
At 31st March 2011 RZZ—F
=A=1+-H
Cost 4,419 35,890 5,574 10,007 55,890  fiA
Accumulated depreciation (791) (28,425) (5,375) (5,169) (39,760)  EiHiTE
Net book amount 3,628 7,465 199 4,838 16,130 REFE
Depreciation expense is charged to general and REFZHE  TESZHRGEEER
administrative expenses in the consolidated income RZ—MBERTBEZ BRI -

statement during the year.
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16INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16 IREWZE
wE
Consolidated
—g——F -T-T%
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1st April 15,000 28,000 MAPWMA—H
Addition 20,273 - NE
Fair value loss (273) - RAFEEEE
Disposal (15,000) (13,000) L&
At 31st March 20,000 15,000 M=A=+—H

The rental income derived from the investment properties
is approximately HK$646,000 during the year (2010:
HK$1,111,000).

Details of the geographical locations and tenure are as

AEEHME AREVENEELEZ
& U A 47646,0008 L (—ZZE—F
£ :1,111,00087T) °

WP E R EERERFBOT

follows:
wa
Consolidated
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
THExT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
In Hong Kong &
— long-term leases of over 50 years 20,000 15,000 — BRS04 v REATHAY

An investment property was disposed during the year at
a cash consideration of HK$15,000,000. No gain or loss is
resulted.

As at 31st March 2011, an investment property of
approximately HK$20,000,000 (2010: HK$15,000,000)
was stated at open market value as determined by the
directors based on valuations assessed by an independent,
professionally qualified valuer.

As at 31st March 2011, an investment property of
approximately HK$20,000,000 (2010: nil) was pledged as
collaterals for certain of the VSC Group’s bank borrowings.

RNEFHBE —HIEZEEDEIN
15,000,000 L ZIREREEH - W
EE T 2SS 1R »

R-E——F=A=+—8 ' —H&
#920,000,000%8 T (= & — T F :
15,000,000 7T) I EVMHEHRES
BB REEAERGEMMAET
ZARMEZEEE -

R-E——F=A=+—H8 ' —H&
#920,000,000%8 T (= & — T 4 :
/) PR EMEERBEABIES
EEETHRITEEZEBR -
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17LAND USE RIGHTS 17 + Hb{FE FAHE
The VSC Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid BlEESERTIEREZERE
operating lease payments and their net book amounts are FREMEERAORIBEREREDFE
analysed as follows: DR -
wEe
Consolidated
—E——F —ZT—FF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1st April 10,930 1132 RmA—A
Amortisation (202) (202) BN
At 31st March 10,728 10,930 W=A=+—H
Details of the geographical locations and tenure are as HIRALE REEEERFBOT
follows:
wEe
Consolidated
—E——F T —FF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
In Hong Kong NE
— long-term leases of over 50 years 96 97 — BE50F 2 KEFE L
In Mainland China R AR B AT
— long-term leases of over 50 years 10,632 10,833 — BE50F 2 REAMH A
10,728 10,930
Amortisation of land use rights has been included in general THERBZHAECBRESRAE
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income BRZ—RRITBEHEF -
statement.
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18INVESTMENTS IN 18 RMIB AR ZIRE
SUBSIDIARIES
PIN/NE|
Company
—E——fF —E-TF
2011 2010
THERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 71,746 71,746  3E EHARD o HREKAK
Due from subsidiaries 445,527 457,142 FEWBTE A A
517,273 528,888
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non- EWHE ARz 2B AEER
interest bearing, denominated in HK$ without predetermined DEFE ~ LAAB TSR R I & TEE
repayment terms. The carrying amounts approximated their ZEFH RZE—ZTFR=_FT—
fair values and were not impaired as at 31st March 2010 and —F=H=1T—H HEHS%HEHE
2011. HRAFEERORLBERE -
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2011 are RZE——F=H=1+—B2ZxZ
as follows: MEARIFBRT -
EREXE
HEMRYL /KL ERTRARRA EiEzBRA
£ REEHE /MR EREIi) TEER
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid equity interest
establishment and share capital/ attributable to
Name operations registered capital the VSC Group (i)  Principal activities
Fit Team Holdings RBELHEE 10,050,005 7T 100% HBER
Limited
British Virgin Islands US$10,050,002 Investment holding
M (R hE AL, 10,000,0007 7 100% BERA
B AR i)
Leisure Plus Building Mainland China HK$10,000,000 Trading of sanitary wares
Products (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (iii)
MERERES (L8) HERM 3,140,000 ¢ 100% EBERA
B AR i)
Leisure Plus International  Mainland China US$3,140,000 Trading of sanitary wares
Trading (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (iii)
MiEEE S (RY) hE AL, 5,000,000/ 70 100% BEZRA
B AR i)
Leisure Plus Trading Mainland China HK$5,000,000 Trading of sanitary wares
(Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (iii)
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18INVESTMENTS IN

18 RIB LT 2 RE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (%8)
EEEXE
TEMARL /KL ERTRBERE EihzRA
A% R /MR A BEALL) FEEE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid equity interest
establishment and share capital/ attributable to
Name operations registered capital the VSC Group (i)  Principal activities
FEEBBLEERRE BFE 18T 100% SEBLEREYR
BARAA
SC Metal Recycling Hong Kong HK$1 Metal recycling business
Investments Limited
LEBIEEERES  PERM 3,000,000 7T 66.7% TFiHREEMM
AR A i)
Shanghai Bao Shun Chang Mainland China US$3,000,000 Stockholding and trading
International Trading of steel
Co., Ltd. (iii)
RALE (BE) BE 10,0007 7T 100% MBES
BRAR
Tomahawk Capital Ltd. Hong Kong HK$10,000 Finance business
Van Shung Chong RERIHE 6T 100% RBER
(B.V.L) Limited
British Virgin Islands US$6 Investment holding
BIEETBR A &R 2,000 T EBR 100% B EMME R AR
10,000,0007 7 ERRY
EREREETR(I)
Van Shung Chong Hong ~ Hong Kong HK$2,000 ordinary Trading of steel and
Limited HK$10,000,000 provision of
non-voting deferred (i) management services
IEEERBR A &R 200,000/ 7T 100% fRERERSE
Vantage Godown Hong Kong HK$200,000 Provision of warehousing
Company Limited services
BIES (1H) k& BE 2B 100% RERK
BRAR
VSC (China) Investment Ltd. Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
BIREREMBERAR B4 287 100% EFEZE  BFEERKE
RZREE
VSC Building Products Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of sanitary wares,

Company Limited
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18INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ML R ERTRAZRE
1 RE&HH / ERBRA

Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid

18 RIB L F 2 RE

(

&)
HEE2E
Bl 2 B

BEEDLl) TEXH

Percentage of

equity interest

establishment and share capital/ attributable to
Name operations registered capital the VSC Group (i)  Principal activities
ERSZBERAR Bk 28T 100% BEZBHEE
VSC Plastics Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of plastics resins
Company Limited
BIEEHEFR AR BE 38,0008 7T & X 100% TEsHREEM
20,000,007 7
EREREETR(I)
VSC Steel Company Limited Hong Kong HK$38,000 ordinary Stockholding and trading
HK$20,000,000 of steel
non-voting deferred (i)
BIREME (A1) el 20,000,000 7 100% EREEMT
AR 2 (i)
VSC Steel (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$20,000,000 Stockholding and trading
Co., Ltd. (iii) of steel
GSERERES (LE) hERM 7,280,000% 7T 100% FHREEM
AR AT i)
VSC Steel (Shanghai) Mainland China US$7,280,000 Stockholding and trading
Co., Ltd. (iii) of steel
EES (R B A 2,400,000/ 7T 100% EEZBEE
B AR i)
VSC Trading (Shezhen) Mainland China HK$2,400,000 Trading of plastics resins
Co., Ltd. (iii)
RE=SEM BRI FE MM ARE3,000,0007C 90.1% EEBZA
Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of sanitary wares
LEMERRESE  PERM 500,000 7T 100% #ERE
B AR i)
Mainland China US$500,000 Property agent

Notes:

(i)  The shares of Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited are
held directly by the Company. The shares of other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

i

(i)

Van Shung Chong (B.V.1.) Limited
ZRMEBEARRREERES - A
fth Bt /& A B 2 IR 1 Bl B8 R B 45
A e
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18INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

These non-voting deferred shares are owned by the
VSC Group. The non-voting deferred shares have no
voting rights, are not entitled to any distributions upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$2,000,000,000 per
share has been distributed to the holders of ordinary
shares for Van Shung Chong Hong Limited or a sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders
of ordinary shares for VSC Steel Company Limited.

Leisure Plus International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
and VSC Steel (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. are wholly foreign
owned enterprises established in Mainland China with
an operating period of 20 years to 2023. Shanghai
Bao Shun Chang International Trading Co., Ltd. is an
equity joint venture established in Mainland China
with an operating period of 20 years to 2014. VSC Steel
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an operating period
of 30 years to 2035. VSC Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an operating period of 20 years to
2024. Leisure Plus Building Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
and Leisure Plus Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. are wholly
foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 20 years to 2028.
EBFEEMELLERAF is a wholly foreign
owned enterprises established in Mainland China with
an operating period of 10 years to 2020. H/Z =% =
MABRAT] is an equity joint venture established in
Mainland China with an operating period of 10 years to
2021.

18 RITB LR 2 RE
(%)
fizE : (&)

(i)

(iii)

hEREZEREERKDBSE
EXEHES  BEREEELER
MDA EILZRE - TEENER
Koz ERBRIESIEETT
ERAREBRIEEACED
K & B% 3% 8 1%2,000,000,00078
TTZ AR EEE & AR
NAZEBRIFBEADEDIK
10,000,000,0007% 7T 2 FXEBAD °

FEEREBRES (B8) BRA
ALEERERES (HF) 8
PR 2 &) TR AR B A 3B AR S22
BEhE KEHEWF B
T_=F |t LBEIEERKE
ZEHAERART—ERHBERRA
MK ZEERERE K&
HA20F E=F—MFIE -
ElESME ORI BERA A
Jh— R R B A 3t K 37 2 SN E
¥ KEHANFE E-F
“HEIL2EES (FY) A
FRA | Ty — R B A ik 32
ZINE R EEH B20F
EZTHFIE o B IREM
ORI BR AR RFEIKE S
GRYI) BR AR TR R A
KL 2 INE B3 - & HA20
FE BT -NFEIFe BBH
MEMELLER AR T —ME
PR BE RS 2 INE D -
KEHAI0F BT _TF
- RE=CEMBRAAE T
—BERPERAKIZEEE
BhE KEHBI0E &=
T-—Ffo
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19INVESTMENTS IN IO REBENT2RE
P —
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS FEUREEE N F)
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
wE
Consolidated
—E——fF —T—2F
2011 2010
TERT T 7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Investment cost 156,184 241,304 HREKAK
Amounts due from associates 23,103 52,344  FEUSEE SN A
The movements of investments in associates are as follows: REERB 2 BT ¢
wa
Consolidated
—E——F —E—FF
2011 2010
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1st April 241,304 253,515 HPMA—H
Disposal of interest in an associate (98,225) - HE—HEEARZED
Share of profits/(losses) JE(REEZ N Rl G R (EE)
of associates — net 6,626 (12,896) — FE
Exchange differences 6,479 685 BN ZEFE
At 31st March 156,184 241304 WM=A=+—H
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19INVESTMENTS IN
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

The VSC Group’s share of the revenues and results of its
associates, all of which are unlisted, and their aggregated

19 RE
i3

G
=)
44 &

H& i

“T.

BIEESEERE2F LM B ENT
ZERIERAREEREBEERA

assets and liabilities, are as follows: (ES NN
EEERE
Ei311)54 etz RA&
2B BRRE R/ Eb S EIEESEREN BEEAL
Percentage of
Place of equity interest
Registered and  establishment/ attributable to
Name paid up capital incorporation Attributable to the VSC Group the VSC Group
a7/
BE =1 KA 1))
Assets  Liabilities  Revenues Profit/(loss)
TER TET ThER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RZE——F=f=+-H
As at 31st March 2011
GREETEERARA () 150007 RBELZHE - - 63411 (976) 0%
Ryerson China Limited (i)  US$15,000 British Virgin
Islands
China Able Limited (ii) 26,190,005 HEEBERELZES 248219 (105,743) 15,867 6,724 33.3%
US$26,190,000  British Virgin
Islands
VSC Hotel Investments 50%TT KBELZHE 21,693 (25,831 17,748 - 44%
Limited (iii)
US$50 British Virgin
Islands
Protection Asia Limited (iv) 1,000%7 EED 2,934 - - - 37.5%
US$1,000 Samoa
EREEEEMMT 6,400,000  HEIR 33,783 (23,009) 75,340 878 34.9%
BRAF(V)
Changshu Baoshunchang ~ U$$6,400,000  Mainland China
Steel Processing
Co., Ltd. (v)
306,629  (154,583) 172,366 6,626
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19INVESTMENTS IN 1O RBE N ZRE
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS Jﬁﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁ% NCINGY
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
BIRESE
AP FEfE 2 IR
e BARA KL/ s EIRE & EEN EmAol
Percentage of
Place of equity interest
Registered and  establishment/ attributable to
Name paid up capital incorporation Attributable to the VSC Group the VSC Group
&/

BE a8 BA  (B#8)
Assets  Liabilities  Revenues Profit/(loss)
TET THT THT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

As at 31st March 2010
R_E-—ZF=A=+—H

HRETEARARG  15000%T RBRAES 169,127 (69,926) 200,462 2,044 20%
Ryerson China Limited (i)~ US$15,000 British Virgin
Islands
China Able Limited (i) 26,190,000 REEZHES 237,721 (107,983) 14,997 10,182 33.3%
US$26,190,000  British Virgin
Islands
VSC Hotel Investments SIES BERLHS 22932 (26258) 14484 (26,140) 44%
Limited (iii)
US$50 British Virgin
Islands
Protection Asia Limited (iv) 1,000357T EED 2,997 (63) = = 37.5%
US$1,000 Samoa
FAREIESMEMINT 6,400,000  FEIAM 28,625  (19,194) 44,89 1,018 34.9%
BRAEW)

Changshu Baoshunchang US$6,400,000 Mainland China
Steel Processing
Co., Ltd. (v)

461402 (223424) 274839 (12,896)
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19INVESTMENTS IN
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The VSC Group disposed its 20% interest in Ryerson
China on 3rd June 2010 (Note 6).

China Able Limited (“China Able”) is a contractual joint
venture which is held in equal shares between Fit Team
Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
VSC Group since 26th March 2008, Nanyang Industrial
(China) Limited, an independent third-party and Marvel
Champ Investments Limited, another independent
third-party. China Able was an associate of the VSC
Group since May 2007.

VSC Hotel Investments Limited (“VSC Hotel”) became
an associate of the VSC Group when the VSC Group
disposed of 50% of VSC Hotel on 25th July 2007 to
Far Profit Limited, reducing its equity interest in VSC
Hotel from 90% to 40%. Subsequently, the VSC Group
further invested 4% in VSC Hotel, increasing its equity
interest from 40% to 44% and a negative goodwill of
approximately HK$1,128,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement in prior year.

19

(if)

(i)

BIEEEEER_ZE—ZF X
AF=EHEREBREDBR
20% iz (FIsEe6) °

China Able Limited ([China
Ablel) 75 — [E HFit Team
Holdings Limited (£ B = =
BENE=ZA=-+B% K

ﬁ?ﬂ EEEEZ —HE2EK
& 2 &) » Nanyang Industrial

(Chma) Limited © A& % 3 58 =
# MMarvel Champ Investments
Limited * 5 — BB =FH
FAFBEERERO 2 EEDRE -
B-_ZZ %A A ' China Able
EXASIEEEE 2 —HEE

A -

EEEEEBER_-_ZTTLF
t A=+ 3R A HE E RvsC
Hotel Investments Limited ([VSC
Hotel |) Z50%%E = T Far Profit
Limited * E #VSC Hotel Z f& 4
R #5 fF 0% 2 F40%1%

VSC Hotel B B & JE & &
2 —HEE A Hig 8

& & £ B # — 25 1% B4%RAVSC
Hotel - E % 7N # z5 Bl H40%

R REREFERERL
1,128,000/ )T 2 B BN R A
BEERA o
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19INVESTMENTS IN
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Protection Asia Limited became an associate of the VSC
Group when CAMP (B.V.l.) Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the VSC Group, acquired 37.5% of
its equity interest on 1st September 2007.

(v) Changshu Baoshunchang Steel Processing Co., Ltd.
became an associate of the VSC Group since November
2005. It is a contractual joint venture established in
Mainland China with an operating period of 30 years to
2035.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms. The
carrying amounts approximated their fair values and were
not impaired as at 31st March 2010 and 2011.

The amounts due from/(to) associates were denominated in
the following currencies:

19

e M ERRME

J~J~
AN
%4,

TR
P U B

BeE - (&)

ivy RZZEZELFNA—B: &
BEEEEEz—HEENB
A A} ' CAMP (B.V.l.) Holdings
Limited © &2 B&Protection Asia
Limited 37.5%2 % 7N # z5 1%
EEXAEIEESE 2 —FH

.L/‘\ﬂ ®

v BRAEIBEEHEMMIARA
Al BZTTRF+—AEX
REBIBEEEEz —HBER
Al o k73— A R R B A K
M2 IR ERE - KEH30
F o ET=RAFIFo

S AR £ AMERL
RETFIB RIS 2 A o 2
“E-TER-F-—FZA=T
—B - HEESBRRAFHRER
KRORA A -

i () BEARZ2BEE
TN -

we
Consolidated
—g——-%  -T-TF
2011 2010
F#ExT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RMB 467 (3,869) ARME
HK$ 22,636 56,213 BJT
23,103 52,344
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20DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 ELFIEHERE
ASSETS /(LIABILITIES) (BfE)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when & BB R ERFT1S 7 & B B B AR PR
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income SR BERHE ARG ITHRE
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the AREERLEMSEHEEMNEEER
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income —MEHKERZE AR EE X TR
taxed levied is the same taxation authority on either the JERTERBBM G EH - M
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an ERFEBZFREEZMTIE
intention to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset B BRCESHEEHEABEINE
amounts are as follows: B o MIHE R T
wa
Consolidated
—E——fF —ET—FF
2011 2010
FBx THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets: BEEMSHEE
— Deferred income tax asset to be — R+ @A &Y E 2
recovered after 12 months 14,542 16,341 IREFTEEE
— Deferred income tax asset to be — BR+=EARKE 2
recovered within 12 months 8,409 8,926 RIS EE
22,951 25,267
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFSHAE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be - BN+ Z@A%KBEZ
settled after 12 months (1,373) (5) RILFTISTAE
Net deferred income tax assets 21,578 25262 RIEFTISFEEF53
The movements in net deferred income tax assets are as FREMEHEEZSOT ¢
follows:
wa
Consolidated
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1t April 25,262 42,728 RWA—A
Recognised in the consolidated ERfREEmR P iER
income statement (3,906) (17,493)
Exchange differences 222 27 [EHEEE
At 31st March 21,578 25262 MW=RA=+—H
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20DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 IE3E ’%iﬁﬁ%/
ASSETS /(LIABILITIES) (B8fE) (&)

(Continued)

AEZHE - X EEEHERBDEE
B RIS RIEFT SR E &

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the

offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as kBHEZEBHMT -
follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFTSIMAE
]
Consolidated
RENEZ
ALEEEE B RAHEEE  AEHE B
Fair value
losses of
investment Cumulative Decelerated
property  Provisions tax losses depreciation Total
TR TR TR TEx TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1st April 2009 RZEZTNF
656 831 40,741 607 4285 MWAH—H
(Charged)/credited to ERiREBEmET
the consolidated income (3B )EEA
statement (408) 4,520 (21,612) (47) (17,547)
Exchange differences = = 27 = 27 ERER
At 315t March 2010 R-ZE—ZF
248 5,351 19,156 560 25315 =A=+—H
(Charged)/credited to ERfraiEmRH
the consolidated income (HBR),EtA
statement (248) (5,351) 3,006 36 (2,557)
Exchange differences - - 222 - 222 [EHERR
At 31st March 2011 R-ZZT——%
- - 22,384 596 298 =A=+—H
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20DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 ?Eﬁﬁﬁ’%iﬁﬁ% /
ASSETS /(LIABILITIES) (BfE) (&)
(Continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFTEREE
Foe)
Consolidated
FEMB EFE wEm
Withholding Accelerated
tax depreciation Total

FTERT FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st April 2009 - (107) (107) R=ZEZhEFWA—H
Credited to the consolidated ERGAEEERFFTA
income statement - 54 54
At 31st March 2010 RZEB—FF
- (53) (53) =A=+—H
(Charged)/credited to the BRGAEBSES
consolidated income statement (1,363) 14 (1,349) (F1B&) =t A
At 31st March 2011 R-ZZT——%F
(1,363) (39) (1,402) =H=+—H
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry- EIEFT 15 & B Ty E JE 4B B8 B 7%
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax Fl 25 35 1B oK 2K FE 3R B m A & 3R M
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at Mg 2 BIABEERR - B
31st March 2011, the deferred income tax assets recognised —E——F=A=+—H BEHM
from tax loss of approximately HK$19,367,000 (2010: HEBMBERZELMEHEE
HK$11,091,000) can be carried forward indefinitely. The #919,367,000% 7T (= & — T F :
remaining tax losses will expire in five years from the year 11,091,000 7T) © 3% & 58 7] A &R
they were incurred. e c RN o BIIEBERBRNEE

BRAFAKRY
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20DEFERRED INCOME TAX
ASSETS /(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

The VSC Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately HK$13,859,000 (2010: HK$44,128,000)
in respect of losses amounting to HK$55,610,000 (2010:
HK$177,771,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. As at 31st March 2011, the cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$1,651,000 (2010: HK$8,543,000)
can be carried forward indefinitely while tax losses of
approximately HK$53,959,000 (2010: HK$169,228,000) will
expire in five years from the year they were incurred.

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$407,000
(2010: HK$1,866,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries. Management currently has
no intention to remit those earnings.

= B & & B 3 & 555,610,000 7T
(ZZ—Z % :177,771,000% 7T) 2
&5 18 E R %913,859,000% T (= &
— = 4F © 44,128,00078 JT) Z IEE
RSB E + 2S5 A LA EE R 2K
JERBW - AT ——F=F=
+—H ' RErHIAEE 491,651,000
B (Z T — FT F 18,543,000
JC) AJ AR HA AL 82 - i B TE A5 18
#953,959,000%8 T (= & — T 4 :
169,228,000/ 7T ) REAZBAFAN

RETHBARZAEREF ZE
5P TE H0 3 2K 1% 1 7R & 49407,00078 7T
(ZZ—Z4F :1,866,000/8 7T) ZIiE
EAEHaE EEERRTER
L H AR o
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21 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 28th March 2011, the VSC Group acquired the distribution
business of selling building products at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$10,692,000 from an independent third
party (“the Acquisition”).

The initial accounting for the Acquisition was not completed
at the end of the year because the fair values to be
assigned to the identifiable assets can only be determined
provisionally. As a result, the consideration of approximately
HK$10,692,000 was allocated to goodwill on a provisional
basis. The VSC Group will recognise any adjustments to the
goodwill upon completing the initial accounting for the
Acquisition, which is expected to be finalised in year 2012.

EXe6t
R—ZT——F=A=_+/\B ' BlE
2 £ E LA4910,692,0008 T 2 IR & 1
BRBUE=-BZWEHEEEER
O SHEERS ([UkEE]) -

gz )4 st RN R &
TR YRR DB E A R E E
ZATFEEEERERT - B
#910,692,00078 7T 2 118 LA B B B %2
PEREEEE - BlIEESE BN IE
ZF e EETEA%E BN =
T——FRE) BRTWEHERE -
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22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 220TEEM T A
SRE
Consolidated
—E——F T -FF
2011 2010
BE =R BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FERT FTHEx TAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest rate instrument (i) - 13 - 133 F=EIE (i)
Forward foreign exchange REVNES H)
contracts — held for —BAE
trading (ii) 2,395 128 10 - BERZ (ii)
Steel futures contracts (jii) 2 - 980 - HMHEEEL i)
Total 2,397 141 990 133 #8758
Less non-current portion: WEIEE S
Interest rate instrument - - - (133) A|=TE
Forward foreign exchange REIINES L
contracts — held for trading (2,294) (128) - - —EBEEER%
Current portion 103 13 990 - BRI
PN/NE
Company
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
BE =R BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FHExT FERT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Interest rate instrument (iv) - 13 - 133 FZETE (iv)
Less non-current portion: BAIEE BFEE S
Interest rate instrument - - = (133) F=ETE
Current portion - 13 - - EHHD

The derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability
if the remaining maturity of the underlying item is more
than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability if the
maturity of the underlying item is less than 12 months.

The credit quality of derivative assets has been assessed by
reference to historical information about the counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past.

FRERIE B 2 R 5 B R R 1218
A BTETEG@DBRIERDE
EXAE  MAERE AR ZFER
HEALRR2ER - IARBEES
afE-

TEBEEZEEER  DIREEH

RIMI T AR E A B R 2 B Bt /T
E o BARIMARNBELEELD -
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22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest
rate instrument at 31st March 2011 was approximately
US$50,000,000 (2010: US$50,000,000). Fair value change
on the interest rate instrument as of 31st March 2011 was
recognised in other gains — net in the consolidated income
statement. The committed payment under the interest
rate instrument was approximately US$500,000 (2010:
US$1,500,000) and the maturity date is 8th September
2011.

The total notional principal amount of the outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts at 31st March 2011 was
approximately US$97,000,000 (2010: US$14,000,000). Net
fair value change on forward foreign exchange contracts as
of 31st March 2011 was recognised in other gains — net in
the consolidated income statement. The settlement dates
are from 26th May 2011 to 25th February 2013.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding steel
future contracts at 31st March 2011 was approximately
RMB9,590,000 (2010: RMB47,600,000). Net fair value
change on steel future contracts as of 31st March 2011 was
recognised in other gains — net in the consolidated income
statement. The settlement date is 17th October 2011.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest
rate instrument at 31st March 2011 was approximately
US$50,000,000 (2010: US$50,000,000). Fair value change
on the interest rate instrument as of 31st March 2011 was
recognised in other gains — net in the income statement.
The committed payment under the interest rate instrument
was approximately US$500,000 (2010: US$1,500,000) and
the maturity date is 8th September 2011.

22

/3=

T

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

eI HE (&)

R-B——F=F=+—8 &
BZHMERITAZREARSEY
50,000,000% 7T (= T — T F :
50,000,000 7T) ° A =F ——4F
=A=+—H8 AEXIAZRAYF
BEZHORGEEBRRZHM
Wz — FHETER - BHER

FZE T BT 5REE AR £500,0003E T
(ZZT—Z4 :1,500,00037T) &
A AE—ZT——FAANEB -

MRZZT——F=A=+—8 &
B2 RIINES N Z BERTEAS
#H #797,000,000% T (Z & — &
£ 114,000,000 7T) - R=F —
—E=ZA=+—0 ERHINES
W2 FATEBEEHCRNGAIE
R HAURES — BEPER -
HEHHR-_Z—FRA=TAX
AE—_Z—=%_"_A—_+HAH-

R-_TE——F=ZA=+—8 &
EZMMBEAN IR EASE
4 A R #9 590,000 (ZFE—F
F: AR¥47,600,0007T) ° R =
T——&=ZA=+—8 WM
BEENZF AT EAEZE DN
AlEmk bl e — FREHE
ReoEERAE——Ft+A+
+H -

RZE——&F=A=+—H " &
EZRERTAZRTERGEL
50,000,000% 7T (= T — T F :
50,000,000 7T) °c A =F ——4F
=A=+—H8 AEXIAZAYF
BEEZHCRBERZRZEMK
- BETER - DHERZHE
T B 3088 5 49500,000% 7T (=
T — T4 1 1,500,000%7T) & F
HEA-—Z—FAANE -
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23INVENTORIES 23178

wE
Consolidated
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Work in progress relating to provision AR RHRSE 2
of services (i) 35,923 - FZIAY SR ()
Finished goods 353,941 245,720 B
389,864 245,720
The costs of inventories recognised as expenses and included #74,019,698,0008 L (ZF — T4 :
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement 3,018,978,000/8 70) 2 F &K ANE. T
amounted to approximately HK$4,019,698,000 (2010: RETHITEBEEGEERRZ
HK$3,018,978,000). SHERAR o
As at 31st March 2011, inventories of approximately RZE——F=A=+—8"' 4
HK$21,507,000 (2010: HK$30,993,000) were pledged as 21,507,000% T (= & — T F:
collaterals for certain of the VSC Group’s bank borrowings, 30,993,000/ 70) 2 F EEHFIEA
and certain inventories were held under trust receipts bank BEESEBRTEEZEFR B
loan arrangements. KETEENRITERREERZ
ZHTHA o
Notes: BT EE
(i) The VSC Group entered into an agreement with an () AFEHH SIEEEEEET
independent third party during the year. Pursuant to F=FEF B R E
the agreement, the VSC Group will provide services in BIEEEE G AIRBAUNRTRE
connection with sales and marketing activities (‘the —EE ([ZWE]) 2HER
Project”) of a property in the PRC (“the Property”) and the MSHEES 2 HERE ([18
profit to be received by VSC Group will depend on the Bl mEBIESEEBIZHEEZ
amount of proceeds derived from the sales of the Property. Y3 2 FT1S BB M B H g A
The costs incurred relating to the Project are capitalised as BEEXAZKAERREFE &
inventory which does not include a profit margin or non- RIS A BIEEMERSIEEIEE
attributable overheads. EER -
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24TRADE AND BILL

24 EWERR R 15 FE

£+
RECEIVABLES/LOAN W E =
RECEIVABLES
5 o ET
(@) Trade and bill receivables (a) EWIRRE RIE
wE
Consolidated
—EB——F —E-FF
2011 2010
TR FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Trade and bill receivables FEMER R S R &
— from third parties 507,220 410,967 —REBE=H
— from an associate - 13,881 — RE— RS AT
Less: provision for impairment of R FEUERFURE
trade receivables (9,858) (15,022) B
Trade and bill receivables, net 497,362 409,826 [EWBRIKRZE - FE5E

Sales are either covered by (i) letters of credit with bill

HEBUHNR RN ZER

payable at sight or (i) open account with credit terms = B)EERARNET 58

of 15 to 60 days.

Ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables by invoice

H—RNF152608 T -

RUWERARZEREEZAH

date is as follows: ZERER DT ¢
we
Consolidated
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET THIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0 to 60 days 430,632 371,468 0—60H
61 to 120 days 46,856 32,479 61 —120H
121 to 180 days 15,574 4,729 121 —180H
181 to 365 days 5,276 1,121 181 —365H
Over 365 days 8,882 15,051 #E3E365H
507,220 424,848
Less: Provision for impairment of B EUER FURE
trade receivables (9,858) (15,022) B iE
497,362 409,826
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24TRADE AND BILL
RECEIVABLES/LOAN
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@) Trade and bill receivables (Contntinued)

24 FEWERR R 15 FE
WER (&)

(a) BUEBRMRKRZEE (&)

RZE——F=A=+—8 "
#34,832,000%8 T (= T — =
F 12,798,000 L) 2B H T
B2 RESBEEERKERK
ZEN ZEREBEZEK
B RIFTEEA 2 B A AT o

At 31st March 2011, included in trade and bill
receivables were retentions from contract work of
approximately HK$4,832,000 (2010: HK$2,798,000),
which were not due for collection until satisfaction of
the conditions specified in the underlying contracts.

RZE——F=ZA=+—
H BREREEED
394,979,000% L (= & — &
4 192,115,000/ ) B # %
BEHRERLHEIEFPHREH
BT °

At 31st March 2011, trade and bill receivables of
approximately HK$394,979,000 (2010: HK$192,115,000)
were fully performing and were from customers with no
history of default.

J& U5 PR Tk 2 BB e B

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows: I
=Ee
Consolidated
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1st April 15,022 16,685 U HA—H
Provision for impairment recognised ERtreBm kP ER
in the consolidated income BB
statement 1,704 9,348
Provision for impairment written ERiREBmiPME 2
back in the consolidated income BB
statement (6,648) (1,081)
Provision for impairment written off (517) (9,950) HiEHBEREE
Exchange differences 297 20 [EHZ=FE
At 31st March 9,858 15022 W=A=+—H
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24TRADE AND BILL 24 FEHQEE?KE%‘EE/FE

RECEIVABLES/LOAN WER (&)

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@) Trade and bill receivables (Continued) (a) BUERRRRE ()
As at 31st March 2011, trade receivables of R-ZF——F=A=+—8"
approximately HK$9,858,000 (2010: HK$15,022,000) & 1R B 5K 479,858,0007% 7T (=
were impaired and provided for. The amount of T—TF 115,022,00087T) B
net provision recovered in the consolidated income tERE KRB - AFEHEH -
statement during the year was approximately ERiRE Bm R IRE 2 F R
HK$4,944,000 (2010: HK$8,267,000 recognised). The % 474,944,0008 T (ZF —F
ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows: F : BH#:28,267,000/87T) « &

FEWERRSRAREC DOAMTIAT -

PN
=}

Consolidated

—EB——F —ET-FF
2011 2010
FET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0 to 60 days 388 147 0—60H
61 to 120 days - 28 61 —120H
121 to 180 days - 254 121 —180H
181 to 365 days 877 1,768 181 —365H
Over 365 days 8,593 12,825 HE#E365H
9,858 15,022
The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but B 8 BB R R B 2 FE ML BR 3RBR
not impaired is as follows: BROITAR ¢
A
wh R

Consolidated

—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
0 to 60 days 77,840 176,851 00— 60H
61 to 120 days 11,740 21,251 61— 120H
121 to 180 days 2,314 3,897 121 —180H
181 to 365 days 646 93 181 —365H
Over 365 days - 597 #RiA365H
92,540 202,689
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24TRADE AND BILL
RECEIVABLES/LOAN
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of net trade and bill receivables
approximated their fair values as at 31st March 2010
and 2011.

The carrying amounts of trade and bill receivables were
denominated in the following currencies:

e B ERRME

24 BRI R R &
WER (&)

(a) BUWIRFRRERE (&)

FRENER RS EESE
HEN - EER-T——
F=ZA=+—B2ZATEEM
%) o

EWERRZBE I REATRE
ETE

wEe
Consolidated
—E——fF —E—TF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RMB 243,623 195,218 AR
HKS 247,571 214916 BT
us$ 16,026 14,714 EJT
507,220 424,848

Loan receivables

A loan receivable of HK$19,000,000 (2010:
HK$21,000,000) is secured by the following assets:

—  certain equity interest owned by the borrower;
and

— aloan receivable owned by the borrower.

The carrying amount of this receivable approximated
its fair values as at 31st March 2010 and 2011. It
is denominated in HK$, non-interest bearing and
repayable on 5th December 2011.

As at 31st March 2011, no loan receivables were past
due, impaired and provided for (2010: nil). No provision
has been recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year (2010: nil).

(b) FEURERK

—1819,000,000/8 T (=& —F
£F © 21,000,000 ) 2K E

KA T EE(EHEE

- [ERABEZETRAE
% R

- [ERABEZz—HEERE
e

IR ERZ FE S EEER

~E-BER-F——F=]
=+— A2z AFEEEY - L
BABTEBIRR « T EHB RAR =
T—EI-ARAME

R-_E——F=A=1+—H"
REFEWERE AR - BEN
BB (2 —TF : &) o
FEHE RERGEAEBERER
FHRERZEEFE (—Z—=F
7)o
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25PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 25 FA{YFIE » RS R EAM

OTHER RECEIVABLES

JE U R 7R

wEe
Consolidated
—E——F T —FF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Prepayments for purchases 127,602 168,967 TEfTELRERIE
Rental and other deposits 3,298 3286 e kHEMIZS
Value-added tax recoverable - 1,257 A EIEER
Other receivables 4,924 2,660 H{hEIRER
Others 6,208 2,586  EHAth
142,032 178,756

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximated their fair values as at 31st March
2010 and 2011. They were denominated in the following

FENFZE EeREMEWERZ
FHREEEN _ESE—ZTFR_FT
——F=A=+—BZAFEEHE

currencies: 43 o TENFRIE ~ e R EMEIWER
RESTIEE
wa
Consolidated
—g——§ -—T-T%F
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RMB 129,624 174,150 AR
HK$ 7,848 3421 BT
Us$ 4,560 1,185 ZE7T
142,032 178,756
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25PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 25 ﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ S EE@&E@
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES EUWERRR (58
(Continued)
Movements on provision for impairment of prepayments, EH?‘XIE\; B2 kA A EAERRZ
deposits and other receivables are as follows: BEREZBHOT -
wE
Consolidated
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1st April - 13,954 HRWMA—H
Provision for impairment recognised in BEREREERRPER
the consolidated income statement 1,195 - BB
Provision for impairment written-off (1,195) (13,954) WMsHREEE
At 31st March - - WM=A=+—H
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26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/

26 BRI ITER B

Varag
CASH AND CASH ERBEEE
ey VNG|
Consolidated Company
2% T CZB——-f ZT-ITF
2011 2010 2011 2010
THERT TAT TET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Cash on hand 355 312 - - FEES
Cash at bank 191,460 160,623 438 381 SRIIEN
Short-term bank deposits 335,677 57,182 12,287 12,248 EHISBITER
527,492 218,117 12,725 12,629
Less: Pledged bank deposits (41,624) (57,182) (12,287) (12,248) g : BEBRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 485,368 160,935 438 381 HEeREREEE
Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were EEBRTERMBAELRBESEE
denominated in the following currencies: BETIEE
ey VNG|
Consolidated Company
2% T CZB——-f ZT-ITF
2011 2010 2011 2010
THET TAT TET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RMB 69,563 52,449 - - AR%
HK$ 361,299 131,871 242 184 BT
us$ 96,465 33,643 12,483 12,445 ZETT
Euro 68 79 - - BZE
Others 97 75 - - Hfth
527,492 218,117 12,725 12,629

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents approximated their fair values as at 31st
March 2010 and 2011.

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$31,457,000 (2010: HK$41,482,000) were
pledged as collateral for the VSC Group’s bank borrowings
and approximately HK$10,166,000 (2010: HK$15,699,000)
were pledged for steel future contracts.

As at 31st March 2011, the Company’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$12,287,000 (2010: HK$12,248,000) were
pledged as collateral for the banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary of the Company.

EERRTERERAE KRB LEFE
ZEHCHEEENR _T-—TFR_-
T —F#=A=+—HAZAFHEME
EROIS

RZEBE——F=A=+—H"  BlE
E &£ E #931,457,0008 0 (ZZE—=
& 141,482,000 L) ZWITHERE
BIFEABIEESERITEEZK
5 K #4910,166,0008 7 (ZE—F
F : 15,699,000/ ) B EM M B E
AR Z IR -

R-ZE——F=A=+—H  &A
7] 412,287,000/ 7T (=& — & F ¢
12,248,00078 70) ZIR1THFEARE AKX
NAlz—[EK B AR T ERITEE
EHEA R o
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26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/ 26 BIRIFRITIER ]
5 =
CASH AND CASH ERBEEE (8B)
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
As at 31st March 2011, pledged bank deposits and cash and R—ZZF——F=H=+—H8" B
bank deposits totalling approximately HK$69,563,000 (2010: BIRTERRE© RBTHFRE
HK$52,449,000) were denominated in RMB, which is not a #769,563,0008 T (= & — & F ¢
freely convertible currency in the international market and 52,449,000/ 7T) LA A REFIBR © 3%
its exchange rate is determined by the People’s Bank of EEW I ERBEMES R LR K
China. HIEREHPEARRITERE °
27 TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES 27 BRI KR EE
Payment terms with suppliers are either on letters of credit R {8 7 2 AN SRR RS LA S R B =X
or open account. Certain suppliers grant credit period of HREAFRET - ATHEFRZEER
around 30 days. Hi%I308
Ageing analysis of trade and bill payables by invoice date is ERNERRZBERBEEZEAI R
as follows: BT :
wEe
Consolidated
—E——5F T -FF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 to 60 days 311,435 242,003 0—60H
61 to 120 days 316 4,050 61—120H
121 to 180 days - 83 121 —180H
181 to 365 days - 438 181 —365H
Over 365 days 2,184 899 HEiE365H
313,935 247,473
The carrying amounts of trade and bill payables ERNEREFRREEZ RE S EEER
approximated their fair values as at 31st March 2010 and —E—FEFERZT——F=H=1
2011. They were denominated in the following currencies: —B2ZRAFEBERD - BNERR
EEBEETIE
Foe)
Consolidated
—E——F T =5
2011 2010
FExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RMB 63,101 45146 ARHE
HK$ 57,016 123,911 BT
us$ 193,818 78,416 37T
313,935 247,473
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28 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND 28 EFtEERHEMESER
=k
OTHER PAYABLES 2\
Fa
Consolidated
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
THERT THBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Accrual for employee benefit expenses 5,416 17,274 [EzHEERASZH
Accrual for operating expenses 27,704 13,918 [EEF&E2H
Value-added tax payables 5,947 7923 [FERIZER
Provision for onerous contracts 37,912 32,429 HERY) 2 EE
Others 14,018 27,855 EHih
90,997 99,399
The carrying amounts of accrued liabilities and other FEARBEREMENERZEEE
payables approximated their fair values as at 31st March REEN_—_Z-—FTFER_FT——F
2010 and 2011. They will be matured within one year. —A=+—HBZAFEEBERLD - k&
ATEEREMENERERRER —FR
FIEf -
They were denominated in the following currencies: ErREREMBENERES T
5 -
=e
Consolidated
—E——fF —E-ZF
2011 2010
TET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RMB 44,150 47,658 AR¥
HK$ 46,695 51,577 BT
us$ 152 164  E7T
90,997 99,399
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29 BORROWINGS 2018 E&
Foe)
Consolidated
—E——F T -FF
2011 2010
FET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current EEH
— Long-term bank loans - 3,925 — REFIRITE R
Current = Hi

— Trust receipts bank loans, SRR TER
secured 416,198 247,803 A Y

— Short-term bank loans, secured 169,324 154,714 — MHASRITE R - IR

— Long-term bank loans, secured, — RHRSRITER
current portion 3,876 7,764 KR - 253D

— Portion of mortgage loan from bank — —FAEEZEDRIT
due for repayment within one BIBE R
year 2,304 -

— Portion of mortgage loan from bank —F 1R EEN AR
due for repayment after one year EEERZEBHRIT
which contains a repayable on HBRER
demand clause 8,442 -

________________________________________________ 600,144 410281 ...
Total borrowings 600,144 414206 fEE#%E
The VSC Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows: SIEEEE 2 EEERPAT ¢
Foe)
Consolidated
—E——F T FF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Within one year 591,702 410,281 1R
Between one and two years 2,304 3,925 1E24F
Between two and five years 6,138 - 2ZE5F
600,144 414,206

153



Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited * Annual Report2011

Notes to the Consolidcted Fincncial Statements

e M ERR MR

2088 (F&)
ADFZ EERRBIT

29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Company’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

KAF]
Company
—E——F —E—FF
2011 2010
F#ExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Within one year 3,876 7,764 1FA
Between one and two years - 3,925 1&E24F
3,876 11,689
The VSC Group’s borrowings are secured by: BlEESE Z EE R T ERR
(i) pledge of the VSC Group’s inventories of approximately i) BIEESEEFEER EFED

154

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HK$21,507,000 (2010: HK$30,993,000) and certain of
VSC Group’s inventories held under trust receipts bank
loan arrangements;

pledge of the VSC Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$31,457,000 (2010: HK$41,482,000);

pledge of the VSC Group’s investment property of
approximately HK$20,000,000 (2010: nil); and

guarantees provided by the Company of approximately
HK$1,457,754,000 (2010: HK$1,069,635,000).

(i)

(iii)

21,507,000/ L (= —ZTF ¢
30,993,000/ L) © KA T &EIE
ESBEZHFERERIRITE
WIEE R 2 S

SEESBEEEERB 2 BI1THE
FX#931,457,0008 ¢ (ZE—F
£F 41,482,000/ 7T)

BIEEEBEEIRIEZIREY
% 4920,000,0008 L (ZF— =
Fo|E) R

XA R REMHERZERY
1,457,754,000%8 T (= & — &
£F 1 1,069,635,00057T) ©
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 2988 (&)
Borrowings were denominated in the following currencies: EEBETIIE
Ee) N
Consolidated Company
“E-—f T ZEB-—-F ZT-ITF
2011 2010 2011 2010
TERT FHET TET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RMB 152,484 131,301 - - ARE
HK$ 443,784 271,216 - - BT
us$ 3,876 11,689 3,876 11,689 7T
600,144 414,206 3,876 11,689
The effective interest rates of borrowings (per annum) at the REER - (EECERNE (§4)
financial year end dates are as follows: (1N
—E——F T -FF
2011 2010
RMB 5.2% 3.8% AR
HKS 2.4% 24% AT
us$ 0.5% 0.5% 7T
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their BECEEASEHEEAR-S—ZF
fair values as at 31st March 2010 and 2011. rMZZ——F=RA=+—HzA¥

BEMLD -
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30SHARE CAPITAL 30 A

EE ERITRBR
(BRo.10ET2EBR) (BRO10BTZEER)
Authorised Issued and fully paid

(Ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each)

(Ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each)

R E A HE R A HfE
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
TR TET TR TERT
’000 HK$’000 000 HK$’000
As at 31st March 2010 and R-E—TF
31st March 2011 =A=t—-HkK
T
1,000,000 100,000 414,128 41413  =ZA=+—-H

31SHARE OPTIONS 31 BRE

156

The VSC Group has a share option scheme under which it
may grant options to any person being an employee, agent,
consultant or representative (including executive directors
and non-executive directors) of the VSC Group to subscribe
for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
The exercise price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the date of grant of the
options, (ii) the average closing prices of the Company’s
shares quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each.

RIEBIESSEZBEREFS - 8
IEESERETEIES KB 2 EMR
BE REA BERIRX(B#E
MITEZTRIFFATES) URBA
RAEZEG - MASBEBIED#
TARRAIRD 230% ° TTEB R HA
NEBEEEETE LD HEATS
REREERE (AR ARNDNIE
HERTEREERBTEBMERRSM
BRRARMIZWTE : (i) E
B fn X B R IR R T IB AOHE B B AT
hEAXZAEREHEXZMAR
RAEFAFIZFHRHE  Ri)AR
AR E{ESR0. 10/87T °
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e B ERRME

31 ke (&)

Movements of share options were: BREZEHMNT -
R-Z2-2F R-Z——F
BRITEE MA—H =A=+-H
Exercise As at B KX As at
RFEH TEH price per 1st April B¥ Forfited/  31st March
Date of grant Exercise period share 2010 Granted lapsed 2011
BT TR TR TR TR
HK$ ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
—E-ZFtAtNA “E-“EXA-HE
19th July 2010 “E-EFEATNR
st June 2012 to
18th July 2020 0.828 - 3,815 - 3,815
“ZERAFTAT=H “EZNFE+AT=HE
13th October 2009 “EZ-AEt+A+=H
13th October 2009 to
12th October 2019 0.504 16,500 - - 16,500
“EZAENBTNR “EZ——5NAt+NRHZE
18th September 2009 “E-AENATLR
18th September 2011 to
17th September 2019 0.586 1,866 - (333) 1,533
ZEERFENATNE “E-ZFAATN\RE
18th September 2009 —Z-AENBTtH
18th September 2012 to
17th September 2019 0.586 1,867 - (334) 1,533
“ZZAFEAATNR “E-ZFRAAtNHE
18th September 2009 —EZ-AENBT LR
18th September 2013 to
17th September 2019 0.586 1,867 - (333) 1,534
—ZEZEN\EXBTHA “EENEXATHAEZE
19th June 2008 —2-NFRATNR
19th June 2008 to
18th June 2018 0.780 3,000 - - 3,000
ZEEXRENATER “EELFENAT=HE
13th September 2006 “E-"FRAATZ=H
13th September 2007 to
12th September 2016 0.900 2,400 - - 2,400
“ZZ=FAA+AIA “ZTREAATAAE
19th September 2003 —E-ZFAATNH
19th September 2005 to
18th September 2013 1.418 1,300 - - 1,300
“EZ=fHAtA “ZZHEHABtHE
7th May 2003 —E-=FHAKA
7th May 2005 to
6th May 2013 0.970 730 = (30) 700
“ZZ=FFHACH “EE=FHA-HE
2nd May 2003 —Z-=%7A-H
2nd May 2003 to
1st May 2013 0.980 1,000 - - 1,000
30,530 3,815 (1,030) 33,315

The fair value of share options granted was determined
by the directors based on the valuations assessed by
independent, professionally qualified valuers, using the
Trinomial Model. The significant inputs into the model were
share price at the grant date, exercise price, expected exit
rate of employees and representatives, estimated trigger
price of exercising of option, expected life of options,
expected dividend payout rate and annual risk-free rate. The
volatility measured is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices over a period of 500 weeks.

ERTBRELAFEEEHE
ERBIYNEESERMGEMRA
SIRARUEF - G ARRE 2 E
ERERERLARE  176EE
EAHEE MEARBERE  17ERE
Pt 2 (Hat 3B - BBRUETART
BB REXREFREEARE

K o

-

KIEIRES002 SR E A R E S

SHMMEE -
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32RESERVES

32 fitfa

&a
Consolidated
Zitie
EjAE
e Cumulative
R N
T iaE
RAEE Share Capital BRI EARE  mvestment Y papy
Share option redemption Statutory Capital  revaluation translation  Retained ag
premium reserve  reserve (iii)  reserves (i) reserve reserve adjustments earnings Total
Tt Tz TEn TEx TExr TEn  TEx TR THEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
At 1t April 2009 W-EEHE
324,761 2,058 71,203 12325 58,355 17 19,586 5779 50018  MA-R
Profitfor the year - - - - - = - 75,1 B FRH
Currency translation BMELES
differences = = = = = = 1,611 = 1,611
Issuance of shares e
—share placement (iv) 12,640 - - - - - - 12640 KR
Issuance of shares kih&s
— exercise of share ~ 11t
options (v} 484 - - - = - - - %4 EREW)
Transfer upon exercise of ERANREE
share options (v} 120 (120 - - - - = = - i)
Lapse of share options - @l - - - - - 11 - RuBRE
Transfer from retained ERAREET
eamings - - - 407 - - - (407) -
Share option scheme ICHE
~value of services - 2,026 - - - - - - 2026 - REEE
Dividends paid to equity BRARARER
holders of the Company - - - - - - - (12422) (124)  BAZRE
At 31st March 2010 RZT-2%
338,005 3,953 71,203 12,732 58,355 17 21,197 68,182 59744 ZR=1-H
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32RESERVES (Continued) 32 A (&)

&a
Consolidated
23t
ERAE
Cumulative
BhE EXEE )
T 1 1] AE EffifE
R RE Share  Capital Bl BRBE nvestment TNV REEF)
Share  option redemption  Statutory  Capital revaluation {translation  Retained 3
premium reserve reserve (iii) reserves (i)  reserve reserve adjustments  earnings Total
TEx TRz TRz TEr TEx  TEx  TEx TRz TExn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
At 1st April 2010 RZE-%%
338,005 3,953 77,203 12,732 58,355 17 21,197 68,182 579,744 MA—H
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 31,032 31,032 FEEF
Currency translation ERERER
differences - - - - - - 9,351 - 9,351
Disposal of interest in HE—FBENT
an associate - - - - - (117) (2,237) - (2,354) ZE#m
Transfer from retained ERERERT
earnings - - - 430 - - - (430) -
Lapse of share options - ") - - - - - 7 - KuZERE
Share option scheme lRiETE
~value of services - 793 - - - - - - 3 -REEE
Dividends paid to YA
equity holders of REREA
the Company - - - - - - - (1533 (15313)  ZfRE
At 31st March 2011 RZE——F
338,005 4,739 77,203 13,162 58,355 - 28,311 83,468 603,243 =R=1-H
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32RESERVES (Continued)

32 féfe (4

Bt

g)

UG
Company
EXEE
BRE fié i) HA
REEE i Capital B&i) RERF
Share Share option redemption Contributed Retained aE
premium reserve  reserve (iii)  surplus (ii) earnings Total
T FHT TR TR TEL FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1t April 2009 324,761 2,058 77,203 53,986 16,752 474760 R-FRNFEA—H
Profit for the year - - - - 10,687 10687  FEEM
Issuance of shares Kir g
— share placement (iv) 12,640 - - - - 12640  —ERW
Issuance of shares KinEf
— exercise of share options (iv) 484 = - - - 484 —1I{RRERRE()
Transfer upon exercise of ERBTEERE
share options (iv) 120 (120) - - - -
Lapse of share options = () - - 1 - KM ERE
Share option scheme G B
—value of services = 2,026 - - - 2000 - [REERE
Dividends paid = = = = (12:422) (12422 ERKE
At 31st March 2010 RZE-ZF
338,005 3,953 77,203 53,986 15,028 488,175 =A=1+-H
At Tst April 2010 338,005 395 77203 53986 15,028 488,175 M -T-TEME—H
Profit for the year - - - - 10,987 10,987  FEEH
Lapse of share options - (7) - - 7 - R ERvE
Share option scheme EEsTE
—value of services - 793 - - - 793 -FRBER
Dividends paid - - - - (15,323) (15323) BERRE
At 31st March 2011 R-F——%
338,005 4,739 77,203 53,986 10,699 434,632 =A=1+-H
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32 it (F&)

B EE -

32RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion
reserve fund and general reserve fund set up by certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China. As stipulated by regulations
in Mainland China, the subsidiaries established and
operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate
a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the enterprise expansion reserve fund
and general reserve fund, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. The general reserve fund
may be used for making up losses and increasing capital,
while the enterprise expansion reserve fund may be used
for increasing capital.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to equity holders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value
of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

The capital redemption reserve was established upon
repurchase of shares in prior years.

As at 31st March 2010, the increase in share premium was
due to the exercise of certain share options by employees
and share placement during that year.

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EERBEIIRPEAME THE
REAZEEERFEHES —RF
BESARY - HRPEAUE
HETER - AR B A3t R S R AR
ZHBARARERBUR RN (&
BEHEEFERBR) BERSE
TEERFEHES L —REFBE
T HEXTTASEESEE ° —
RFFHED R AEEHER RIS
DOREAS - bR B FEEES A
RSB DA A -

REERE-NAN—FREDE -
BABBADIRTBRERBA -
HEMA R B AT IR RS
RHABBELDIKIR - (AR
BT BE SRR VB H S A& 5 TN BE
EEIE - (i)HEEZA#
REEHASEMIREERIE
BERTRARBMEERBE NG
FHEER - BIARDRAAAMEN Bt
MEIK  XNHDIK °

BEABEHE cEERHNESF
B BB R A P51 B ©

R-B—BE=A=+-8 K
DB IR R REER RS
BT E T 2 BRERER A
G
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33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

BFEEBRERNER

(@) BREFEMNEEEEEZRS

generated from operations is as follows: AT -
g%  -T-TF
2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit before income tax 52,904 104,762 B F7 AT Al
Share of (profits)/losses of associates FE(REE & AT BRI,/
— net (6,626) 12,896 B8 - E5E
Interest income (858) (1,314) FBUWA
Interest expenses 16,039 10,612 FELH
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREEZ
equipment 6,951 6,720 e
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEME  BEMREZ
plant and equipment (6) 1,372 (Yezs) /BB
Amortisation of land use right 202 202 i P
Gain on disposal of an investment property - (10,448) HE—EIREWE 7 W&
Fair value loss of an investment property —IBIRBEMEL ATEE
273 - BB
Gain on disposal of interest in HE—fRE AR s
an associate (40,419) - 2 Wz
Gain on disposal of a club debenture (2,038) - HE—mEeHE G
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & —fE KT8 AR5 B
financial assets upon disposal of HE A & 2 B
a subsidiary - (1,631) BEEZWEE
Amount recovered from a fully impaired W E—IBE 2 EREY
available-for-sale financial asset (388) (386) AHHEZHEEE
Change in fair values of derivative THESRMIAZAT
financial instruments (1,399) (4,638) BEZ
Share option scheme — value of services 793 2,026 MERRIEEE - RGEE
Operating profit before working capital BEACEHF LKL
changes 25,428 120,173 el
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (144,144) 13,977 7&& (3&m),/ @
Decrease in amounts due from customers EURER 2 ZREEHTIE
on installation contract work - 700 VR
Increase in trade and bill receivables (87,536) (152,637) FEUWEBRF R ZHEE
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables 5,500 (3,500) FEWEFURL /(M)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TR « e REA
deposits and other receivables 36,724 (14,767) FEUWBE TR A /(& 1n)
Decrease in amounts due from associates 29,241 9,721 [EUERENTIR D
Decrease in amounts due to an associate - (1,568) FET—EEE = AR
Increase in trade and bill payables 66,462 165,786  FE(TER AR EHIL N
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance 120,733 (35,087) TEMCHRIEE N, CRAd)
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities 5T & &R H A AR
and other payables (13,154) 55,609 CR),/
Net cash generated from operations 39,254 158,407 KEELZIREFH
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33CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposals of property, plant and equipment

33FE

e MR ERR M

BEREx ()

(b) EmaReRERT  HEY
X BEERRBZAEHREALR

comprise: L
—E2——F T -FF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net book amount 220 1,559 BREFE
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, HEME  BEREEZ
plant and equipment 6 (1,372) s/ (Ei8)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWZE  BEMEREZ
plant and equipment 226 187 Fr1S k18
(C) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds () REABRLRERT  HE—

from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets upon

disposal of a subsidiary comprise:

BB ARSI BREERHEE
LM TBEEZMIRIARE

—E——F —ZT—FF
2011 2010
FET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed HEZFEE
Available-for-sale financial assets - 580 AIEHEZHBEE
Gain on disposal of the available-for- HE—HHB AR5
sale financial assets upon disposal &S AT 2 B S
of a subsidiary - 1,631 BE 2 W
Cash consideration received - 2211 BlWZzRERE
(d) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds (d) REaBeRERT  HE—
from disposal of interest in an associate comprise: BNl ol s
B
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed 95,871 - HEZEEE
Gain on disposal of interest in e —HEE AR 2 En
an associate 40,419 - Z e
Cash consideration received 136,290 - BlZRERE

AFEFZHRE BIEEEBIAL
136,290,000 TZ REHEEE
PinREPE S TE=E -

The VSC Group disposed of its entire interest in
Ryerson China to a third party at a consideration of
approximately HK$136,290,000 during the year.

163



Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited * Annual Report2011

Notes to the Consolidcted Fincncial Statements

e M ERR MR

%= (&)

i}

il

33CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT IBFEWER
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e) significant non-cash transactions (€) FEBEEARS
Out of the consideration of approximately R 21 2B 2 RE A
HK$10,692,000 for the Acquisition in Note 21, #)10,692,000% 7T H F 4
approximately HK$4,752,000 remained a consideration 4,752,000 TR & ——F =
payable as of 31st March 2011 and was subsequently A=1+—BHERBEMNKE -
settled after 31st March 2011. YHRZFE——F=A=+—H

®BER -

34 GUARANTEES 34 FER
KATE
Company
—E——F —T=F
2011 2010
THExT FHETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Guarantees provided by the Company RARIFLEKE AT
in respect of banking facilities of its FrEsRTTRLE Mgt 2
subsidiaries 1,457,754 1,069,635 ER
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35 COMMITMENTS 35 HEiE
. s A AL
(a) Commitments under operating leases () EEMANAE
(i) Lessor (i) HHEA
Total commitments receivable under the non- s EMRI L2 A
cancellable operating lease agreement in respect BHE XM 2 e bR
of rent-out premise is analysed as follows: BT
Foe)
Consolidated
—E——5F —E-FF
2011 2010
F#ExT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Not later than one year 120 325 REIF
(ii) Lessee (i) AHEA
Total commitments payable under various non- A EMEI N 2 7]
cancellable operating lease agreements in respect BUHE R 2 PR ARE
of rented premises are analysed as follows: EEESHTINR
Foe)
Consolidated
25 —T-FF
2011 2010
FHET FATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Not later than one year 13,522 10,083 R#E14F
Later than one year and not later B1F K
than five years 16,636 5,305 RIBI5E
Later than five years 198 758 154
30,356 16,146
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35COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Commitments under derivative contracts

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group had outstanding
forward foreign currency contracts to purchase
approximately US$18,000,000 (2010: US$14,000,000) for
approximately HK$140,184,000 (2010: HK$108,696,000).
The settlement dates are from 26th May 2011 to 31st
July 2012.

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group had
outstanding forward foreign currency contracts to
purchase approximately US$79,000,000 (2010: nil)
for approximately RMB517,889,000 (2010: nil). The
settlement dates are from 27th June 2012 to 25th
February 2013.

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group had outstanding
steel future contracts to purchase 2,000 metric tonnes
of rebar at approximately RMB9,590,000 (2010:
RMB47,600,000). The settlement date is 17th October
2011.

As at 31st March 2011, the VSC Group had an
outstanding interest rate instrument with a notional
principal amount of approximately US$50,000,000
(2010: US$50,000,000). The committed payment
under the interest rate instrument was approximately
US$500,000 (2010: US$1,500,000) and the maturity date
is 8th September 2011.

As at 31st March 2011, the Company had an outstanding
interest rate investment with a notional principal
amount of approximately US$50,000,000 (2010:
US$50,000,000). The committed payment under the
interest rate instrument was approximately US$500,000
(2010: US$1,500,000) and the maturity date is 8th
September 2011.

35 7&iE ()

(b)

?/T (=] n’] E‘(F

R-ZZTE——F=F=+—
B 8 EE&£E B ® ALY
140,184,000/ T (= & — =
£ 108,696,000/ L) & 17 1F
ZRAPINEE S L LA FBIERE
E 4918,000,000% T (2 — =
£ 114,000,000 JT) ° & E

AR-_ZTE——FRHA=-+H
E2_E——_F+HA=+—"H-

R_F——F=H=+—8"
EEEEEMNEHNARK
517,889,0007T (= & — & £ :
/) RTTEZRPINEEBS
#9 DA A 1E B8 B 4979,000,0003% 7T
(ZE—ZF:8) - FEBA
m t_—iﬂﬂ +t5i
:;—:ifﬂf+£50

R-_TE——F=A=+—8
EEEEEMNBEHNARK
9,590,000 (=T — & F : A
R %47 600,0007T) 1715 2 il
MH@EGH’]M%T’E%,\“’JZ 000
NWEH c HERB A=
F+A++tAR -

R=—FE——F=A=+—8 -

BlEESEHRE —HEEAD
%8#950,000,000% T (ZE—F
£ 150,000,000 7T) KITEZ
FETH - BERZAERTA
5 358 5 #9500,000E€ 78 (=&
— T4 1 1,500,0003% 7T) & Z|
HEAE-_ZT—FNANEB -

R-—ZE——F=A=+—H "
RAFHAE —BRENSELD
50,000,000 T (= F —ZT 4 :
50,000,000% L) AR1T 5 2 Fl =&
TH- -BERRZAETAMNK
8 /5 #9500,000% 7T (— T —=F
F :1,500,000% JT) & E| H A
B-T——FNANA -



BIEEEEERAT « —T——FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERR M

36RELATED PARTY SO6EREAEANLTZRS
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions @) X%

The following is a summary of significant related party HEEALTZBRRSHIE QD
transactions, which were carried out in the normal T hERZREREIRS

course of the VSC Group business: B B RS 2 ERIRSGETT -
—EB——F —E—FF
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Consulting services provided to (i) m—REE S 2B
a then associate - 19,634 NERt 2 B R
Management services provided to (i) M — R E A RREZ
an associate 57 - B IR AR TS
Management services provided to (i) m—REE & 2B
a then associate - 227 NGIE L ol =Y s
Sales of goods to an associate (i) A — M = A R E
225,860 251,414 B
Rental income received from (ii) Bl—HEHEZ
a then associate 57 114 kN = L N
Rental expenses paid to (ii) BEN—MHEE AR
an associate 2,591 6,554 HeTHh
Interest received from a then (iii) Bl—HEHEZ
associate 60 973 LN IS
Notes: BiiaE
(i)  Consulting and management services were provided (i) PFTREZEAREERE R
and goods were sold at prices mutually agreed by FTEHE 2 Em B RE T EK
both parties. Wik 2 (EAEULER o
(i) Rental income and expenses were determined by (i) HEEWARLZHTH2EQH
reference to open market rental. s MEMmER °
(iii) Interest income was determined at a rate of (iii) AU A TH BAF FI R £92%
approximately 2% (2010: 2%) per annum on overdue (ZZE—FF 1 2%) BAF
balances due from a then associate which is disposed EHRE LS 2 —RHEEQ
during the year. Rl BEEERETE o
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36RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

36 E2RF

€

mE

. . =+
(b) Key management compensation (b) EFEEEERM
—B2——F —T—TF
2011 2010
FHT FHBTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries and allowances 9,639 8,004 & KiERL
Bonus 3,544 427 {EAL
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIRES A — REHR
schemes 212 168 =2
13,395 8,599
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